
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support Officer (Cabinet)  
T: 01752 304867 E: nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk 

CABINET 
 
Date:    Tuesday 18 October 2011 
Time:   2pm 
Venue: COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH 
 
Members: 
Councillor Mrs Pengelly, Chair 
Councillor Fry, Vice Chair 
Councillors Ball, Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Monahan, Ricketts 
and Wigens. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 10 October 2011 

Public Document Pack



 
CABINET 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Cabinet Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Cabinet Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items 

on this agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
  
 To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 13 

September and 10 October 2011 (to follow). 
  
4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 

 
Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support 
Unit, Corporate Support Department, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth, 
PL1 2AA, or email to democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be 
received at least five clear working days before the date of the meeting. 

  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY 
  
6. SCRUTINY PANEL TASK AND FINISH GROUP FOR 

WINTER MAINTENANCE   
(Pages 11 - 50) 

  
 Cabinet Members: Councillors Bowyer and Wigens 

CMT Lead Officer: Director for Development and Regeneration 
 
Councillor Nicholson (Chair of the Task and Finish Group and the Growth and 
Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel) has been invited to attend the meeting to 
present the recommendations of the Task and Finish Group, contained in the scrutiny 
report on Winter Maintenance Preparation (Gritting).   Councillor James (Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) has also been invited to attend.  
 
A written report will be submitted on the scrutiny recommendations.    



 

 
CABINET MEMBER: THE LEADER 
  
7. PLYMOUTH ARGYLE FOOTBALL CLUB - TO FOLLOW    
  
 The Director for Development and Regeneration will submit a written report on the 

possibility of the purchase of the freehold of Home Park, by the Council, on a commercial 
basis.  

  
CABINET MEMBER: THE DEPUTY LEADER 
  
8. CONTRACT AWARD FOR SINGLE HOMELESS 

HOSTEL SUPPORT SERVICE   
(Pages 51 - 54) 

  
 The Director for Development and Regeneration will submit a report on the background 

to a procurement exercise of services to replace the current hostel services for single 
homeless people and recommending the award of a contract. 
 
A separate confidential report is referred to in item 11 below. 

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR SAM LEAVES 
  
9. CAPITAL INVESTMENT DELIVERY FOR MARINE 

ACADEMY PLYMOUTH AND ALL SAINTS ACADEMY 
PLYMOUTH   

(Pages 55 - 64) 

  
 1. The Director of Services for Children and Young People will submit a report a 

review of capital allocations was undertaken by Partnership for Schools. Following the 
review, capital allocations of £11.5m for All Saints Academy, Plymouth and £9.5m for 
Marine Academy, Plymouth were approved in May 2011.  

1.1. PfS have indicated that the funding allocated is reliant on the procurement being 
through the Academies Framework administered by Partnership for Schools, managed 
through the Council. This was reinforced through a meeting with the Director for 
Services for Children and Young People and the Director for Corporate Support on 21 
May 2011.   

1.2. As the Academies are separate organisations to Plymouth City Council there is no 
financial advantage to the Council in acting as the procurement agents. The condition 
liability of the schools falls to the Academies and the government so there is no direct 
reduction of liability that this investment would bring.  However the wider benefit to the 
city that such an investment would bring to the Council is significant. The capital 
investment would improve the school environments and bring up to current legislation 
the building fabric.  
 
1.3. The City Council is a co- sponsor of these Academies which means that it retains 
an influence and a responsibility to support these organisations as partners in the 
important object of serving some of the most disadvantaged communities in the city. The 
Council has been fully involved in making the case to Government that these schools 
need capital investment to resolve long standing condition issues and to modernise their 
environments. 



 

 
1.4. Both All Saints and Marine Academy have achieved substantial gains in attainment 
since becoming Academies but there remains much more to achieve. It is therefore 
recommended that the Council should support these projects by acting as the responsible 
body in the capital delivery and to therefore secure this investment for the city.  

  
10. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed. 
 
  
CABINET MEMBER: THE DEPUTY LEADER 
  
11. CONTRACT AWARD FOR SINGLE HOMELESS 

HOSTEL SUPPORT SERVICE (E3)   
(Pages 65 - 72) 

  
 Further to item  above, the Director for Development and Regeneration will submit a 

report on the details of the proposed contract.  
  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR JORDAN 
  
12. MOUNT EDGCUMBE INVEST TO SAVE OPTIONS 

(E3)   
(Pages 73 - 98) 

  
 The Director for Community Services will submit a written report on the 

recommendations arising from the Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee of the 30 
September 2011, which outlined some immediate action to be taken at the park, in line 
with the recommendations approved by Cabinet on 22 July 2011.  
 
 
 

  
 



��������	
����
�������������������

��������
�

	
����
�������������������
�

������	��
�
����������	
��	�
��
����	��	��
	������	
����������	����	���
	������	
�����������	�����	����
��	�������	
����
�	�
��
��	���	�
��
��	
�������	��� 
���	���	!��
���	
	
"���	��	���
�����
#		�����	$

�	%���
&	'(
�����
)�	"���	�����
	%*��
����	&��	���+����
	
��++���)�	�����
	�������
	%*��
����	&��	���������	�
����
�)�	�����
�	���
�	%*��
����	�&	
�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
)�	"������	����
	%*��
����	&��	*
�
��+�
��	���	
�
�
�
������)�	-��	.�����	%"��������	���
&	'(
�����
)�	
�� 	.����
�	%"��������	*��
����	&��	
/����	�
�����
�	���	0�������������	*
�
��+�
��)�	�
�
�	"�
�	%"��������	*��
����	&��	��&
�	
���������
�)�	����
	*������	%"��������	*��
����	&��	'�������
����	�
����
�)�	�
�
�	/��
��
��	
%1����&����������	�����
	��������
	
����
�)�	����
	�
� ��	%"��������	*��
����	&��	
1����+���)	���	!������	!�� �	%���
&	'(
�����
�	����
����)	�	
	
1�
	�

����	�����
�	��	2�33	+�	���	&�����
�	��	2�43	+��	
	
�����������	
�
�������
�����������
�����
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������������������
�
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
	

���� �������	������ ���	����	���
	
1�
�
	�
�
	��	�
����������	�&	���
�
��	��	���������
	����	��
	���
	�&	�������	&���	
�����������	��	�
������	��	��
��	���
�	������
������	��	����	�

�����	
	

���� !��"	�����
	
"��

�	����	��
	�����
�	�&	��
	�

����	�
��	��	54	"�����	5366	��
	���&���
�	��	�	����
��	
�
�����	
	

���� #"��	����� ��!�	$���"%������
	
1�
�
	�
�
	��	7�
������	&���	��
	+�8���	&��	����	�

�����		
	

���� �$���&��"�'��	�%"���������
	
1�
�
	�
�
	��	��
��	�&	�����9�	���
��	8����
���	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



���"	��(������	����
	

�	�� �)*�+�������������,-�)
�-))��.)�/��,���0��1���
	
1�
	*��
����	&��	���������	�
����
�	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	��
	�
����
��������	
�&	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	1�� 	���	������	.���+�	���	�
����
��
�	
���
+����
	�&	��
	+��+�����	��8:
��	��	��
	����
���	�������
�	��	��
	�����
�	�
+����	
	
����������	������	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	���������	�
����
�	%��&
�	���	������
�	
���������
�	���	�
����
�	������
	���	�+���)	+�
�
��
�	��
	+��+�����	�����	���	8

�	
�����	�+	��	������������	����	+����
���			
	
����������	���
�	%�����	�&	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	���	��
	1�� 	���	
������	.���+)	+�
�
��
�	��
	��������	�
+���	��	��������
�	���	�
���8�������	��� ���	
�
��
��	�����	���	8

�	�++���
�	8�	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	������				
		
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 ��8:
��	��	��� 	���
��� 
�	8�	�����
���	/������	�
����
�	��	+�������	
�
���8��������	8
���	�������
�	��	8
	 ����	��	<�
���8�������	
�����
�
��9�	��������	���	�
���8�������	��� ���	��	�
���
�	
<�
���8�������	��� ���9	%1�� 	���	������	.���+	�
����
�������	
%�6)=	
		

%5)	 8
��	+������
	+��������	�
�������	�
���8�������	�

����	
������
�
���	��
	+�����
�	���	����
�	�������	>
���8�������	
�������	0&&��
��	%>�0)	���	�
���	�
������
�	�
����	
����
�
��	
1
��	�
�8
���	����	�	��
�	��	+���������	��+�
�
�����	���	
����������	�������
��	����	7������	������
�
����		1���	�����	
������
	&�
(�8�����	��
�	�

�����	��	�����	:����	�
���8�������	
�

�����	�+	��	����	�
�
�	%����)	�&	���

�	�������	%�4)=	
		

%4)	
		

��
	���
	���	��
�����	�&	�
�8
��	��
	������
�	��	+�8������	�
�������	
�
���8�������	�

�����	%�2)=	
	

%2)	
		

>�0	���
�	��
	�
��
�
�	��	
����
	����	� ���	�
��	�&	�����������	
�����	��
	�
�����	�&	��
	:�8	���	�+
��&��	��������	�

��	��������	��		
�����
�	���	��	
����
	��������	���	�
�
��+�
��	��	������8�
	��
�
	
�

�
��		���
	�����
��	�&	>�0�	����	������
	��
	���
	������	��
	
>�09�	+
������	�8:
����
��	���	����	�

 	&

�8�� 	&���	�����������	
��	�++�������	>�09�	���	��
��	���
	�����
��	����	
����
	����	��
	���
	
��	���
����	���	����
�	����	��	��������	��	��
��	��� 	+�������
�	���	
����	��
7���
	��++���	��	������8�
	��	������	��
�	��	��
	���
	%�?)=	
	

%?)	 ��������	�&	�
+
��	����
�	��	�
���8���������	���	�&	���+������	��	
���
��� 
�	��	
����
	����	��
	�
�
�����	�
������	��	�� ���	+���
�	
1���	+������
	����	8
	������
�	��	8
��	+������
	+��������	&��		
�
���8�������	��� ���	%�@)=	
	
	

Page 2



%A)	 �	�
��
�	��	���
��� 
�	8�	��
	������
��	���	���������
�	
0�
���
�	���	��������	���
�	���	�	�
+���	��8����
�	��	��
	
0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	����	�
�+
��	��	��
	���
	
�&	���������	��&����������
	���	���������	������	�������������	��	
��++������	�
���8�������	��� ���	���	���8��
	����	�
������	%B)	
8
���	%�B)=�
�

%@)	 �
���8�������	+��&��
�	��
	�
��
�
�	���	�+���
�	��	���
	����	��
	
&�������	���	�
����
��������	�&	����	�
��
�	%�66)=	
	

%B)	 �	�
��
�	��	���
��� 
�	�&	�������������	�
�����	������	
�
���8�������	��� ����	����	�
����
��������	8�� 	��	��
	
������
��	���	���������
�	0�
���
�	���	��������	���
�	���		
���8��
	����	�
������	%A)	�8��
	%�65)=	
	

%C)	 ����	�
����	��	�62	����	�	�
��
�	�&	��
�
	������
�
���	��	�����
�	
���	��	�	1�� 	���	������	.���+	��	����	5365�	��	��	����
��
�	��	��
	
0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	����	��
	�
��
�	��	�
��	
���
�	��	�����	�	&���	65	������	�&	��+�
�
�������	���
�	��
	�
�	
������
�
���=	
	

%63)	 ��
	
����
�
��	�����9�	�
7�
��	����	��	���
�	��	8
��
�	��&���	��
	
�
(�	�
��
��	��
	����	��	�&&��
�	���
	�����8��
�	��	��������
�	��� ���	
8
��

�	���	���	��
�	������	8
	�
����
��	��	���
+�
��	

	
	

2��� �)*�+�������������,-�)
�-))��.)�/��,���0��1�3���*)��������)����)��-�����
���
�)
�*�+���

� 	
	 	 �����
�	��	�����
	?3	�8��
�		

	
"��

�	����	��
	����	�������	��	�
����
��
�	��	;	
		

%6)	 ����������
	��������	1
����	�
�	�+	��	+���	�&	��������	���	
>
���8�������	!�� ���	������
�
���	��	�
8�����	5363	���	
�
�����	��
	�
��	����	����������	�
�������		"	�
�8
�	�&	��
	
�������9�	�
����	
����
�
��	1
��	%�
1)	������	8
	�������
�	&��	

���	����	������	��
	�����	����	�
������
�	����
�	����	�
�+
��	��	
��++���	&��	����	�����������	���	�
���8�������	��� ����	��8:
��	��	
��
	�
1	

�8
��9	���
	8
���	��	��++���	���	����
	>
���8�������	
�������	0&&��
��	���	���	��
���+	��
��	���
	%�5)=	
		

%5)	 ����
��	�
���
�	������
�
���	��	��������	5353	+����
����+	����	
��8:
��	��	���

�
���	��	+�8�����
	��	���	8��
&	�
�
����	��� 
����
��	
&���	���	��
���
�	���	�
���
���	%�A)=	
		

%4)	
		

��8:
��	��	/
����	���	!
��8
���	�����	������
�
���	8
���	
���&���
��	��
	������	/
����	���	!
��8
���	�����	�� 
�	
�
�+����8�����	&��	
�������	����	�
���8�������	�
�
�	���
�������	�� 
�	
+���
	����	 
�	�
����	��
���
�	%�C)=		

Page 3



	
%2)	
		

+����	��
	+��	��	+���
	��	���+�	��
	+��+��
�	8�������	�����
�	�
�	
���	��	��
	��
���
�	�
+���	%"++
���(	"	���	�����
	6	��	��
	�&&��
�9�	
�
+���	�
&
��)	%�63)=	
	

%?)	 ��
	������������	��	�+���
�	��	�
&�
��	�
���
�	�
�8
�	���	�&&��
�	
��������8�����	������
�
���	&��	�
���8��������	���	�����	%�64)�	

	

	 	 	
�
�� "��**)����������
+
�����/��,��-�+���������()
�,���)�+������������

	
1�
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	��
	
�
����
��������	�&	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	0�
���
�	���	��������	���
��	�������	
��
	1�� 	���	������	.���+�	���	�
����
��
�	���
+����
	�&	��
	+��+������		"�	������	+���	
���	����	��8����
�	��	�� 
	&������	��
	�
����
���������		
	
����������	���	�
��
�	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
)	��������
�	��
	
+��+�����	���	���� 
�	��
	1�� 	���	������	.���+	&��	��
��	��� �			
	
����������	!����	%�����	�&	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	0�
���
�	���	��������	���
�	
1�� 	���	������	.���+)	�
&
��
�	��	��
	��������	�
+���	��	�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	
������
�	���	�����	+
�+�
	��	���
�	�����	���	8

�	�++���
�	8�	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	

����
�
��	������	���	���
	�
&
�
��
�	��	+����������	��	�
����
�������	A	��	��
	��8��
�	
�
+����			��
	�����
�	��8��
�	

�8
��	�����	��	�
�
�����	��
	�
����
��������	��
	&
��	����	
��	�����	8
	������
�+�
�
�	�&	��	���	�� 
�	���	�&	����
(�	���	����	��	���	�
�
�����	��	�
��	
��
	�
(�	��	��
	��������	�
+����		��
	����
��
�	��
	������	+���	��	��8��
�	

�8
��	���	
��� 
�	&������	��	�
�����	�+���
�	��	��
	���+����
	���
�����	.���+�		��
	����	���� 
�	
����������	���	�
��
�	&��	�
�	��++����	
	
1�
	�����	����	���� 
�	�����������	���
�	���	!����	���	��
	�
�8
��	�&	��
	��� 	���	&�����	
����+�	&��	��
��	��� 	���	�
����
���������		
		
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 �	+�������	��	
���8����
�	&��	&�����������	��
	+������+�����	�&	����+�	�&	
�����	+
�+�
	���	�������	��	�
�8
�D�
�	�

������	��	���	
��������������	
�	���
	��
	������	8
	���
	�&	��
	���+����
	
+��
�����	�
�&�
�=	
			

%5)	 ��������	����	�������	���
	���
��	����
�����
�	��
	
(������	+�����	
���	+���
���
	��	���	�
������	�&	��
	������
�9�	��� &���
	���	����
	
��
�
	�����
���	��	�	���	����	&��������
�	�
���	���
��=	
		

%4)	
		

�	�
��
�	��	�������
�	�&	��
	����
	�&	�
����
�	&��	�������+���
�	
������	�

 ���	������
��	���������	�
����
�	+�����
�	8�	,����	
�
����
��	����
	&���
�	8�	��
	������	-��������	E���	���	���	�
����
�	
+�����
�	8�	+����
��=	
	
	
	
	

Page 4



%2)	
		

��
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	
���8����
�	
����
�	��� ���	������
�
���	8
��

�	������
�9�	������	���
	���	
���
�	
�
�
���	�&	��
	������
�9�	��� &���
	����	��� 	����	
�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
��	��	�

�	��
	�

��	�&	
�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
�=	
	

%?)	 ��
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	��+���
�	
��������	���	���
���������	�&	�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
�	
���	������	�

 
��	���	�
&��

�9	����
�	&��	���&&	��� ���	����	��
�
	
����+�=	
	

%A)	 ��
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	�����&�
�	���	
�� 
�	
(+�����	+��&
�������	8�������
�	8
��

�	����������	��� 
��	
���	�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
��	��	8
	�������
�	
�������	��+
�������=	
	

%@)	 �	�
+���	��	+�
+��
�	��	���	+��&
��������	������	��
	������
�	���	
,����	�
�+�
9�	1����	��� 	���
��
�	��	��++���	��
	�
����	���	
�
��8
���	�&	�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
��	���������	��
�
	
��
�
	��
	����
���=	
	

%B)	 ��
	���+����
	���
�����	.���+	�
�������	��������	������
�	&��	
�������+���
�	������	�

 ���	������
�=	
	

%C)	 ��
	 ������	 +���	 ��	 ��+�
�
��
�	 ���	 ����	 ��
	 ���+����
	 ���
�����	
.���+	�
�
��
�	�
�����	�
+����	��	����	��
�	�&	��� �	

	
���� �4��4��.��������"	��(�!���'�!��	�%�����

����!!����	������ ��5�6"�(��������
	
"	�
+���	���	��8����
�	��	&��
	�
����
��������	���
	8�	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	

����
�
��	�����	��	5@	���
	5366	���	��
	�&&��
��9	+��+�����	��	�
�+���
	��	��
	
�
����
��������	��	D		
		

�	 �������	8���
�	�+���
�=	
�	 ��
	��������	��
���=	
�	 ������	����
��	�����&
��=			
�	 ��
	�
(	'���8�����
��	���
�����	������=	���	
�	 ��������
�	���	�
���8�������	��� ����	

	
����������	���
�	%�����	�&	��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����)	�������
�	����	
�������	8���
�	�+���
�	�
�
	�
7�
��
�	8
����
�	8�	��
	���
	��������	�
�
��
�	��
	7����
���	
�+���
��	��
	��&��������	���	���

	������	��	���
����				
		
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 ��
	0�
���
�	���	��������	
����
�
��	�����	%0�
�)	�������
�	��	
�
�
��
	��
	&���	7����
���	�
�&������
	���	������
	
���������	
�
+����	���	
(������	&���	��
	�
+���	����	8
	��8����
�	��	����	
�������	�

�����=	

Page 5



		
%5)	 ��8��
�	��++����	��
	�

�	&��	

�8
�	8��
&����	���	�
������	��	

�
�	�
���������	���	����	��������	�&&��
��	��	�� 
	����	��� 	&������	
:������	8
��

�	0�
�	���	�
�
����	����&����	/���
��	��������	����	�	


�8
�	�
�����	��	��
	��������	����=	
		

%4)	
		

��
	0�
�	�
����
�������	��	������	����
��	�����&
��	��	���
�	
���	��8��
�	�
7�
���	�	&��������	�
+����	���������	��
	��� �	�&	�������	
���	8�����	����	�������	�
����
��	��	+���	�&	��
	8���
�	�
+���=	
	

%2)	
		

��
	0�
�	��	�����
�	����	��
	�&&��
�	�
+���	��	��
	�
(	'���8�����
��	
���
�����	������	�����
���	��	8
	������
�
�	8�	��8��
�	��	6?	
>��
�8
�	5366�	����	����
��	��
	�
����
��������	�&	��
	��������	
+��
��	

	
�
�� .��	���������(����'��!���4�!��	����

	
1�
	"��������	���
&	'(
�����
	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	+��+�����	��	��+���
	��
	
�
�������	���	����
	����
�����	+
�&������
	&��	��
	��������	���������	+��+�����	D			
		

%�)	 ��	����
��	�����	������	��
	
(������	��

�	8���	&��	���	������
��	��	��
	
�����	��	���
�	��	
����
	����	��
	�������	�
�	���	�8���������	��	*
&��	
&��	��
	��-	��
����	��++������	��
	'�
���	&���	!���
	�����=				
		

%8)	 &��	��
	������������	�&	�	+����	�����	�
�������	���
�
	&��	��
	�&	��
	

(������	����
�����	������	+����	��	�������	��	���	������	��
	����=				
		

%�)	
		

&��	�����
�	��	��
	����
�	����
	����
�����	�
����
	��	�
�+	��	����
	
��
	�
�������	���
�	&����
�	���	
����
	�������
��	���
���
	������	��
	
����=		
	

%�)	
		

&��	�����
�	��	��
	���	�
����
�	��++������	��
	�
����
	�
�
	+���	&���	
��	�
���
	��
����	�����	���	��������	�
����
	�
���8�����=		
		

%
)	 ��	�
��
�	��
	�
+���	��
�	8�	��
	�������	������	��
	����	���
	��
	
'�
���	&���	!���
	+�������	�
������	���	���
=	
			

%&)	 ��	
���8����	�	+�������
	��	�
���
�	��
	�����
��	��
��

�	8�	��	
'(
�����
	.���+	%����	

�8
�	�
+�
�
�������)�		

	
��8��
�	

�8
��	�
�
	����	�����
�	����	&����
�	�
+����	�����	8
	��8����
�	��	��
	

(+
������
	���	���
�	�
�����
	��+���������	��������
�	����	��
	�����
���	
��
�����	
�
�������	��������	�
+���
�
��	+��:
���	�
����
�	���	�
+����		
	
����������	
����
�	�
��
�	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	���������	�
����
�	%���

�	��
�
�	!���
	
���	��������8�����))	�����������
�	��
	�&&��
��	��	��
	+����
��	����
�
�	��	���
	���	
����
��
�	��
	+��+�����	��	��8��
��				
		
1�
	�����	����	��
�	��
	���
�����	�&	��8��
�	

�8
��	��	��
	���&��
�����	�
+���	�
&
��
�	
��	��	�����
	?C	8
����	

Page 6



	
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 ��
	+����	��	�
���
�	�	 
�8	���
	�����	�
�������	�
����
	������	��
	����	
8�	"+���	5362	��
	
�����
��	��8:
��	��	�	&����
�	�
+���	���	�������	
�++�����	�&	��
	�����
	��	��
	��+����	+�������
=	
		

%5)	 ��	��	���
�	����	�&&��
��	����	�������	�	��&�	��� 
�	�
�����	&��	��
	
�+�����	������	�	�
+���
�
��	
��
�����	�
�������	��������=		
		

%4)	
		

��
	+����	��	�
���
�	�	+����	�+
������	&��	 
�8	���
	�����	����
�����	8�	
�
+�
�8
�	5365�	��
	�++���
�=	
			

%2)	
		

�++�����	��	���
�	��	��
	+����	��	
(�
��	����
�	����
	����
�����	��	�	
�����	8����	&��	>��
�8
�	5366	���	��	
(�
��	��
	�
����
	���
���
	
&��	��
	�
�������	6C�?33	+��+
���
�	��	��
	�����	8�	"+���	5365�	����	
���
	����
��=	
	

%?)	 �++�����	��	���
�	��	��
	'�������
����	�
����
�	��������
	
.��
�����
	1
���	�&	�
&
�
��
	%"++
���(	4)	���	�
�
������	�&	
���������	��	�
�	���	��	"++
���(	4	+������+�	2�4	��	��
	�&&��
�	���	
��	��
	�����	�&	��
	'(
�����
	.���+	��	�����	��
	+�������
	��	
+����
��	��	��
	�
7���
�	+��
�	��	���
�	��	�

�	��
	���
��8�
	
������
�	��	��
	�
+���=	
			

%A)	 ��	 ��	 ���
�	 ����	 ��
	 '(
�����
	 .���+	 &��	 ��
	 +�������
	 ����	
����������	 ���	 �
���
�	 �	 �������������	 +���	 &��	 ������
��	 ���	
�
���	��	��++���	��
	��+�
�
�������	�&	��
�
	�����
��	

	
���� �� "�%��$!��	�� ���!����.�(�	����	����

	
1�
	*��
����	&��	���������	�
����
�	���	"��������	���
&	'(
�����
	��8����
�	�	�����
�	
�
+���	��	+��+�����	��	�
&��8���	��
	+�8���	����
��	��	"�����	!���	���	��������
	�	53+	
�����
	&��	��
�				
	
1�
	�
+���	�������
�	����	D	
		

%�)	 ��
	"�����	!��	����
��	�
�
	��
	8���
��	+�8���	����
��	��	���������	
������
�	��	��
	�
���	�&	��
	�
����	�
���
�	��
�	8�	��������	���	
�
���
���=	
		

%8)	 ��
	����������	��+����	���
���
��	�&	F?33 	�����	���	�	&����
�	
�
7���
�
��	��	��+����	�
�
�+��	&��	&������=	
	

%�)	
		

��
	+��+�����	�����	���	��	�������	8���
�	+�
����
	�&	F54? 	
���	
�
��	���	�����	��+���	��	��
	�++���
�	�
���
��	+����	��	����
�
	
�������=			
		

%�)	
		

��
	+��+�����	�����	+�����
	&��	��	����������	&���	���
	
�+���

	��	
��++���	��
�����	���	�����
����
	��	��
	����
���	

Page 7



	
����������	
����
�	�
��
�	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	���������	�
����
�	%���

�	��
�
�	!���
	
���	��������8�����))	+�
�
��
�	��
	+��+�����	���	�������
�	����	��	���	��+������	��	�����	
���
�����	��	��+���
�
���	��	����
���						
		
��8��
�	

�8
��	�������
�	����	��
	�����
�	&��	����
��	�
�
	���
	
(+
����
	��	���
�	+����	
�&	��
	�������	���	����	����	+��+����	�����	���+��	����	����8�����	�
7���
�
���	���	�����	
8
	���
���8�
	��	����
	����	+����������	8����
�	
���	
	
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 ��8:
��	��	�������	�++�����	�&	��
	�����
	��	��
	��+����	+�������
�	
�++�����	��	���
�	��	��
	�
&��8����
��	�&	��
	"�����	!��	����
��	
���	��
	������������	�&	�	�����
	�&	53+	&��	��
=		
			

%5)	 �	�
��
�	�� 
�	+���
	��(	������	�&�
�	��
	������������	�&	��������	&��	
��
�	��	��&���	�	�
��
�	�&	��
	���
�	����
��=	
		

%4)	
		

��
	����	�������	 ��	�
����
��
�	 ��	 �++���
	 ��
	 �����
	�
7���
�	
��	��
	��+����	+�������
�	

	
���� �� �'"�����'��$��������������	�������(���

	
1�
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	��
	
+��+��
�	��&
��������	������
�	���+����
	�������	�����	���8��
�	����	��
	��������
�	
+���
���
��	�����	+�����
	�������
	��	���	
�
��
�	�
�8
��	���	
�+���

�	���	���	���
	
������	��&
��������	����
���	������	��
	����
(�	�&	��
��	��� 	&��	��
	��������	
	
����������	���	�
��
�	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
)	�������
�	����	��
	
+��+�����	�+���
�	���	8������	���
��
�	���	��
	
(������	+�����
��	
	
1�
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	���	�
�	�
��	�
�
	�����������
�	
��	��
��	��� 	��	��8��
�	

�8
��	�
�
	���	���
	���&��
��	�8���	��&
��������	������
�	
����	��	+�
�����	�
����			
		
"��

�	����	��
	��&
��������	������
�	���+����
	������	��	�++���
��	
		
	

���� �$������4��	(���	�����������
	
�����
�	��	�����
	24	�&	��
	����	�������	�

����	��	5?	����	5366	�����	���
	�++�����	��	
��
	������	��	�����
	��	�����	+��
����	��
	*��
����	�&	�
����
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	
�
�+�
	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	��� ����	�����	+��
����	���
��
�	����	��	������	+���	
+�
+��
�	8�	�	�����D��
���	��� 	����+	����	���
�
�	��������	������	��
	����
	��������	5353	
+����
����+�		
	
����������	���	�
��
�	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
)	�������
�	����	
��8��
�	���	�++���
�	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
	����	�����	���	������
�	�������	��	
����
��	�����	+��
����		��
	��
�	���
�����	��	��
	����
�	���	����
7�
��
�	�&	�����	+��
���	
���	�	�������
	�
�&	���
���
��	
�
��	��	0���8
�	��	�����	
�
��
�	�
�8
��	�����	+������+��
�		

Page 8



��
	����	���� 
�	������
	�����8���	%�
����	�������	�
�&������
	���	�����
����+	"������)	
���	!������	!�� �	%���
&	'(
�����
�	����
����)	&��	��
��	��� �	
	

�	!�� �	����
��
�	��8��
�	

�8
��	���	
�+�����
�	����	��� ����	�����	+��
���	���	�	
���
	��
����		-�	���	���	:���	��
	���������9�	�
�+����8������	��	���	
�
����
9�	�
�+����8�����	
���	���	���
�����
	��	��
	�

����	���	��	
(��+�
	�&	��������9�	8����	�++�����	��	
+����
����+	��� ����	
		
"��

�	����	;	
		

%6)	 ��8��
�9�	�������
��	��	��� ����	�����	+��
���	��	�
�&&���
��	��	
������
�	������	��
	������
�	���	,����	�
�+�
9�	����	5366	;	62=								
			

%5)	 �++�����	��	���
�	��	��
	�����	��
���	�
���
��	+����	��	��8����
��	��	
���
�	��
	����
	5353	+����
����+=				
		

%4)	
		

��	������	�
+���	��	��8����
�	��	��8��
��	��	�������	+����
��	��	
��� ����	�����	+��
����	���������	��
	&�������	&���	��	������	�
�&D
���
���
��	
�������	���	+����
��	������	��
	�����			

	
���� �������"�	����%���	�������	� "���%�����!��	�	��7�	��'���

	
1�
	*��
����	&��	*
�
��+�
��	���	�
�
�
������	��8����
�	�	�����
�	�
+���	��	�	����
��&��	
8��	��	��
	*
+����
��	&��	1����+���9�	�����	��������8�
	1����+���	�����	��	���	��
	
����������	��	�����	8��	��� 
����	����������	��
	�����	�
���			
	
1�
	�
+���	�������
�	����	;	
		

%�)	 ��
	�����	���	�	�����	+����	&������	������
�
��	���	��	&����
�	
��������	����	�������	&����	�
�
	�
7���
�	��	�
���
�	��
	�����	
��������8�
	1����+���	����9�	+���	�&	��
	��
����	+��:
��=				
		

%8)	 ��
	�
���
��	8���	&��	��
	8��	�����	8
	�����	!
��	�����	
"++���������	�����
��	�	+�8���	+�����
�	���D&��D+��&��	���+����	�����
�	
8�	�������

�	
���8����
�	��	�
���
�	��
	*
+����
��	&��	1����+���	
������	&��	�����	���	���
����
�	��� 
����	����������	��
	�����	�
��=								
			

%�)	
		

��
	���
��	�&	�����	!
��	�����	"++���������	�����
��	�
�
	��
	6?	
E������	���	������	/������	"��������
�	��	��
	�����	�
���	���	��
	
6?	��:��	8��	�+
������	��	��
	�
�����		1�
	���+���	���	&���	�����	
���������	���	&���	8��	�+
�����	���
�����	���	��	-��
+
��
��	
���������		"���	����+
�	��	
�+���

	�&	��������	����	�������	��	
����
����	���
�	��	�	�
+���	���
�����			

	
����������	!��
��	%��8��
�	

�8
�	&��	1����+���)	+�
�
��
�	��
	+��+�����	���	�������
�	
����	��
	����	���	��	��
	&��
&����	�&	�����	��� 
�����		/
	����	�
+���
�	����	��
	���
�
	���	
8

�	�������
�	&��	��	�����	��	��
	>�������	1����+���	"������		
	
"��

�	����	��
	�����	��	���
+�
�	���	�++�����	��	���
�	��	+���

�	����	����	+���
	�&	��
	
�����	��� 
����	+��:
��	��	��������	���	��
	�
������

Page 9



	
���� �8�!�	�%"���������

	
"��

�	����	���
�	�
�����	633%")	%2)	�&	��
	�����	.��
���
��	"���	6C@5�	��
	+�
��	���	
+�8���	��
	
(����
�	&���	��
	�

����	&��	��
	&��������	��
�	�&	8����
��	��	��
	�������	����	
��	������
�	��
	�� 
��	���������
	�&	
(
�+�	��&��������	��	�
&��
�	��	+������+�	4	�&	����	6	�&	
���
���
	65"	�&	��
	"���	��	��
��
�	8�	��
	��

���	�&	-�&��������	"��	5333�	
	

���� .��	���������(����'��!���4�!��	��9��:���
	
1�
	"��������	���
&	'(
�����
	��8����
�	�	�
+���	��	���&��
�����	�
�����	�
������	��	��
	
����
	���	�
�������	��+���
�
����	�
&
��
�	��	��	�����
	?4	�8��
�	
			
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 10



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject: Scrutiny Panel Task and Finish Group for Winter Maintenance  

Committee:   Cabinet  

Date:   18 October 2011 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Bowyer and Councillor Wigens  

CMT Member: Directors of Development and Regeneration and Corporate Support 

Author: Ian Ellis (Assistant Network Manager) Transport and Highways 

Contact: Tel: 01752 304223 
Email: ian.ellis@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:   IRE/0911 

Key Decision:  N  

Part: Part 1   
 
Executive Summary:  

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle on 27 July 2011, the 
establishment of a Task and Finish Group to review the authority’s winter maintenance preparation 
regime to ensure it was fit for purpose.  The Task and Finish Group convened on the 8th and 15th 
September 2011 to consider evidence and hear from witnesses. 
 
From the results of the evidence provided, the group made five recommendations.  The 
recommendations are as follows: 
 

1. That the Council make best use of the salt barn at Prince Rock and procure additional salt 
provision. This will guarantee greater capacity for the city wide gritting service and as a 
purchase of an asset should be regarded as a financial investment. The ability to treat areas of 
high footfall and high dependency will reduce the negative impact on the economy in the 
event of another harsh winter. The panel recommends that the salt be purchased soonest to 
secure the lower rates per tonnage and as salt is not perishable can be sold on a later date. 

 
2. That the Directors of Corporate Support and Development & Regeneration, by delegation to 

officers, be responsible for the development of the business case for the actual salt 
procurement and the development and implementation of an operating model that will ensure 
optimum value for money This will include the responsibility and arrangements for the 
distribution and spreading of the supplies to non HMPE locations and the identification of 
corporate resources. 

 
3. That PCC develop a Gritting Policy which will identify and prioritise needs over and above the 

existing Transport & Highways Winter Service plan that primarily deals with primary and 
secondary network routes. The policy which will be developed over time, will state criteria 
for the prioritisation of non HMPE and provide a clear transparent strategy for specific areas 
of the city to be treated ahead of others. To develop these criteria, officers will consider; 

 
§ Areas of high footfall 
§ Areas of high dependency 
§ Ward Councillors feedback on specific hot spots within their wards, which should be 

considered as a priority and why 
§ The views of residents at neighbourhood meetings 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 11



 
4. That Ward Councillors be asked to review existing grit bin sites in co-operation with the 

Transport & Highways partnership, and in accordance with the newly developing criteria. This 
will help determine the most appropriate provision for hot spot areas e.g. salt bins, salt bags 
or additional gritting to ensure the most costs effective treatment. 

 
5. That PCC has a role in the strategic co-ordination and planning for gritting and supplies across 

the city by partner organisations such as NHS Derriford, Fire Service. That the appropriate 
PCC lead officer be identified to review previous ad-hoc demand for salt and to identify lead 
officers in partner organisations with whom we can work to ensure that key high risks areas 
across the city are identified. 

 
Following consideration of the recommendations, officers’ responses are as follows. 
 
In the absence of a formally responsible officer for management of a winter maintenance service for 
the Corporate Estate, it is proposed that Corporate Property (the Facilities Manager) assume this 
responsibility.  To this end the following arrangements will be made to support winter maintenance 
for winter 2011/12: 
 

§ To procure additional supplies of salt (circa 100 tonnes) to be stored initially in the salt barn 
at Prince Rock Depot.  

§ Provide security for salt supplies and manage the release and distribution of stocks around the 
Corporate Estate. 

§ To identify key secondary locations around the city, where salt supplies can be securely 
stored to enable better distribution at required times. 

§ Liaise with appropriate services to identify sources of labour to support with salt spreading in 
times of need.  

§ To review the Corporate Estate, liaise with and support building managers to ensure that 
supplies are distributed to buildings on a priority basis (initially buildings with public access and 
where access is required by service users from vulnerable sections of the community e.g. the 
elderly). These supplies to be sufficient to provide a minimum 6 days resilience for the 
clearance of a single pedestrian route from the curtilage of the site to main point of access 
and the areas immediately adjacent to emergency exits. Supplies to be distributed more widely 
within the limits of the resources available. 

§ Where premises/sites are not covered by the Corporate centralised maintenance budget 
costs to be recharged to appropriate departmental cost centres 

 
I the medium term , Corporate Property will: 
 

§ Undertake a review of open land and grit bin locations, in coordination with the Transport 
and Highways partnership, to establish a methodology for the prioritisation, supply and 
distribution of salt for future years.  

 
§ Lead in the development of a strategy and policy for the effective winter maintenance of the 

wider Corporate Estate following the principles of the existing Transport and Highways 
winter maintenance plan. 

 
The Transport and Highways partnership currently maintains approximately 400 grit bins as part of 
its Winter Service Plan; these have been installed ad hoc over many years.  Whilst each of these are 
inspected and refilled annually in time for the winter period, no formal review has been undertaken 
to confirm that they are still properly located to best serve the needs of the community. 
 
Officers will formalise the criteria for determining the location of grit bins before undertaking a full 
review of existing sites in consultation with Members.  The review will coordinate with Corporate 

Page 12



Property to ensure that assets are not unnecessarily duplicated.  Future requests for the provision of 
grit bins will be assessed against the criteria used in the review. 
 
Preparation for the 2011/12 winter period is already underway; consequently, it is likely that changes 
proposed as a result the review will not be implemented until the following winter period. 
         
Corporate Plan 2011 – 2014: 
 
Providing a safe and well-maintained road network and corporate asset contributes to the economic 
well being of the City in support of the Growth priority. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Procurement of salt for the Prince Rock salt barn will accommodated within existing resources.  
Further financial and resource implications are unknown until the proposed reviews are undertaken. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
Plymouth City Council’s defence against insurance claims relies largely on its ability to demonstrate 
performance against its prescribed service levels for maintaining its assets.  Consequently, the review 
of winter service provision will ensure that a defensible position against claims arising from winter 
conditions can be maintained. 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

 
It is recommended that Cabinet approves and notes: 
 

1. The proposed actions to be undertaken by the Facilities Manager in respect of the 
arrangements for the corporate estate, both in the short and medium term. 

 
2. The proposal to undertake both a full review of existing grit bin sites and the criteria used to 

determine the provision of future grit bins, in consultation with Members. 
  
These actions will improve winter readiness for the corporate estate for 2011/12, whilst ensuring 
that the authority is properly prepared to deal with future winters. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None – The Task and Finish group’s review considered winter service planning across the authority 
and the subsequent recommendations are considered both positive and constructive. 
 
Background papers: 

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Task and Finish Group Minutes for Winter 
Maintenance. 
 
Sign off:   
 
FinDevF1
1120033 

 Leg1299
1/JAR 

 HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member Clive Perkin 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



�

��������	�
�
	���� ����
�������������	���
������������������������
�

��������	�����	�
��
����	�	�����
����������
�������	�
�����
������������	���	�
������������

� �

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 15



�

�


�������� � �

�
��  ����
�������

!� "#������������	���

$� �����	����

%� ���������&

��	���

'� (���������

)� *��� ������&�����+�,��������"��
�����

-� ���
��+��

.� ��������
	������	�
���	�����

�
�

&

��
�#���/����0���� ����	�����1��������2� 13�

&

��
�#�!�/�(������4	�����	�������������/������������
������	�����

&

��
�#�$�/���+�������,��	���5����	�
�������

&

��
�#�%�/�������
����������+���������

&

��
�#�'�/�"���+������������+��������

&

��
�#�)�/�(��������������5�����	����+�

�

�

�

����	����,����������

•� 64�"�/�6�+��	���4	���	��	7���	����7����"#
�����

��������	��
���
��
��������
�������
�������������������������������
����
��������
	��
��
�
�������������������������������������������	�����	���	������������������
�������
����������� ��
���������������	�����
��	��
�
���
�
�����!����������������
"#$% �������
�&' �����������������������������������

�

•� ��8�6���/���	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�

�

� � � � �

�

�

�
�

�

Page 16



�

�

�� �������
�����
�

�������������	�
����������4	�	+������5�	�
�	

����
����
�����
������!-�9����!:��;�����
���	7����������,�	��	���	�
������������
�����������������������	�����	����
��
	�	�����
��+������������������	��,���,���
��
���<�

�

�� ���
����������	���
�

�����������	�
�����
�������	�������	7�����
�	��	���	�
������������
���������������
(������4	�����	������+���������������<������	���,,������
����
�
���,���	������������
	����
	�
�	����
�
�	���������������	�
�����
	���������
�����+�������+���<�
�

�

�� �����	����
�

�����	���	�
������������
=��������
	�������7�����
����
����
��,�����,�������+�
>�����������/��

•� >��������������������2>�	��3�

•� >����������>�����2�����>�	��3�

•� >����������5������

•� >����������>���������

•� >���������4��
���

•� >����������4�������������

•� >����������(����	���

•� >����������(��+���

�
��������
��
������,�����������;������	���	�
������������
��	����

����
�7��/�
�
•� ����������;�5��������4	�	+���,���1�����
�����	�
���+����	�����

•�  	��"����;�&�����	�����������4	�	+��;������������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�

•� 1���	��4	�����;���������4	�	+��;������������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�

•� ����(����;�6�	
��,���������4	�	+������?���;������������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�

•� 6����������	�;�1�����	������

�����,,�����

�

�� �
�������	����	
��
�
%<�� �����	���	�
������������
��������
����������
	�	������	��������������
������
�����	�
�

��	��,��������������/��
�
•� .���
���7���!:���

Page 17



�

�

•� �'���
���7���!:���
�
%<!� 4��7�����,������	���	�
������������
�	���
�����#	�����	�
��	�����������
	������

	7��������(������4	�����	������+�������������������	�������,�����	��,���,���
��
���<�
�
%<$� ����(�������+�	������@�����2� 13����	��	���
�	��&

��
�#��<�
�
%<%�� &������������+�����.���
���7���!:���	�
��'���
���7���!:��������	���	�
������������
�

�����
���
����
�����,�������������;��	���
�@���������	�
������
���
�	�������	�
�
��������
	���������	���+��������(������4	�����	������+���<�

�
%<'� *����������	�
�,��
��+��,��������.���
���7���!:��������+������
�
���	��/�
�

2	3� ����������	
��#
�������
�����7	
������������	����A�
�
273� ����(������4	�����	������+�����������������	���,�
�7������������A�

�
2�3� �����������������
��������������+�����������������	
��������������������A�

�
2
3� �����������	

��#��	�����%::�+����7���������+��������������/��,,�������������
�

�����	����@�����������,��������+����7���������+����������������
����
A�
�

2�3� +������+����������������,�����
����
���	���	�
������
	�����	
�A�
�

2,3� ��������������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�(������4	�����	������	���	������
�����
�
�����������	�����	�����,��������
��	������	��������	����������	�
�
��	
B�	�
���	���	�������	���	��	7���	��
�7�����#
����A�

�
2+3� ����	��	����������������
�������	��+�����	�����
�������	���+�������	
������������

��������������������	�����,	����	�����	���	�����
A�
�

2�3� +��������
�7��	

�
���������	������������������
���������������������������
��������
���	�����
�	��
��
��������������
�7������	����

��+��	C	�
A�

�
2�3� ����(������4	�����	������+�����	��,��������7������&
���A�

�
203� ����	����
���	������
����	���
�������������	
���������7�,��������,���	������,�����

	�
�����A�
�

2�3� �����������	�,�#�
����7����,��
��	����������
�	������������+������+��,���	
�A�
�

2�3� ����	�������
���
���	��!::���������,��	����	����@����
�����	���	�������+����7����
�����+����������������
����
A�

�
2�3� �����������
���+�����������
�������������������	�����������,����������	
�

�������A�
�

2�3� ����>��������	��
��	�����������	����+����������
	������B7������������+	�
��+��������
�
,�����������
����	����	�����������������������	���	
������������
��
�
A�

�
2�3� �	����	��������,,�����������������
��	������D�

�
2
3� ,���
	�������������
������	��
������������A��

Page 18



�

�

�
�

2@3� �,,������������
���	���������	��	��	���	���#�
	�������
�����,��	���	��6	�,���
�6����A�
�

2�3� ������������	���
����7����	������������������������	�����������	
��A�
�

2�3� +������������������	����
����������������	
������������	�	�����������E�����
���=�
��������������������,�������A�

�
2�3� ����	���+����7����������������������	���	��	7���	��
�7�����#
����A�

�
2�3� �������	������,�+����7������������	��+��	����
�	��
����	����������������+���������������


�
�������	��A�
�

2�3� ���������	�����	�����������>����>��������	
������&�����	���������7	�����,�	�,�#�
�
	���	��,��A�

�

%<)� *����������	�
�,��
��+��,���������'���
���7���!:���������+������
��+���	��/��

�

2	3� �����������,�����	�������+������������	�����������������	���������
���
���	�
�
���	���,������	��	��������A�

273� �	����	��	

��#��	�����F$:�
�����������������������7��������	��
����F�::�
���

�������	���������A�

2�3� ����������	���	��
�	��'���,�������������	���,	������,�����������	�����	���������,�
D:����	��	����������A�

2
3� �>>�	�
�&���������
�����������	���������	�����	������	
����������,,���	
����A�

2�3� �������	���	
	�����	��������������
�
�����������������	����������,��	��A�

2,3� �>>�>��
��	�����

����2	������	�	+�����3��	
����
����7������,�������������������

�
��A�

2+3� &��������
�������
��
����	������+��������
����
���	������
	������B7����������
�����������������	��	���	7������,	�����	�����������@����A�

2�3� �,,�������������
��������+�����,�������7�����,�����
�7����	�
�����������������
���+B���������������������#
��������������������������	�����	������+���A�

�

�� ����������
�

�����	���	�
������������
���	�
���
������	������,����/�

�
•�  	��"����;�&�����	�����������4	�	+���

•� 1���	��4	�����;���������4	�	+���

•� ����(����;�6�	
��,���������4	�	+������?����

•� 4����6�����+;�>��
��	��������4	�	+���

Page 19



�

�

•� >�����1	����/�6�+��	��4	�����	������������	��

•� �������	�6������+��/�&����(	����	��

•�  	��5	�,���
�/�4	�����	������	��G�	
���

•� �����G��
�/����
����� �,���	������,,�����

�

�� �����������	����������������������
��
�
)<�� ,�����������������,��������
�����
����
�
��������
	��������,�������+����������������+�
/�

�
)<�<�� �������	������	����	��	�
���������	

��	��������������
��	������,�������������	�����	����

��+����,�������64�"��	�
A�������������
����	���	������	�
�������	7������
������������,����
	,,����
�������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
���	���������A�

�
)<�<!� >�������
�
	��������
�
������	���	������
��	��
�	

��	����������
������������,��	��;�

����������
����
��+��	����,��������A�
�
)<�<$� >�������
�
	��������
�
������	���	������
��	��
����,���	����
�	

��	����������	����	�����

���
�����7�������,��	��A�
�
)<�<%� �������	�������7����
����������������	�,����������	������,�	

�����	��+������

����������	��+����

7�������7	+�A�
�
)<�<'� ����������������
�
����	��	���������C�
��	���7	���	�
�����
�7��	���7������������������

������+��	���,�������������������	�
�	7����������

������	���	���
�7��������	��
����8�
6�+��	����	��������
A�

�
)<�<)� ��	��
���	���	�
������
	����������	���+�����
;�7����������	��������	���������	�7����
�����<��
�
�

 � ���������
����
	�����	��	�����
��,�����	��	�+����������
�	��������������	��
����8�6�+��	���
�	��������
����
�����������
��������
���	���	�
������
	���+������+��������	��������������<�
����
	�����������
�	�
���
����
������	����	���,������	���+������	�����	
��������������,�����
	�
������	

����+�
�������	�������������,���
	�����,�����������	���	�	��	7��<�����
	����	����
�������
���,���	��������	����7����,�	

�����	�������;������	��>���	������;�������
���;�
�6��1����,��
;�������������	��
����8�6�+��	����	��������
�
����
�
�	

�����	��
��	�+�	7�����������<�

�

����
	�����
����,��
��������;���	�����������������	��+��������
��	�����,��������	�	+������
�,�����64�"�2��+��	����	���	��	7���	��
�7�����#
����3��	�
����+������+�
�������������������
�	,��	�����B��+�����������
��	���7���
��+�;������������,�����
	��������+	���	�����<�
6�������	����	��	�+��������	���7�����������	������	�
����	�����	���	�
���
�	���
�	�
��������
�����
���
����������������	�����

��������
�7��������8�6��	��������
<�������������
��	��
�
	��������	���������
���������������
�	
�����
����	���+��,��	�����

�����7����������

�
	��������	�������
��	7�����+����
������
����+�����
�	��������	�
���������	���������	���
�	���������
�������	�������,�����64�"��	�
�7���+�
���	��
�7���	����������	����;��	�������	��
7���
����,��
�
�����������
<�

Page 20



�

�

�

!� ��
������	������	�����	�����
�

�<� ��	������>��������	���7���������,������	���7	���	��������������	�
�
�������	

�����	���	���

��������<�����������+�	�	�����+��	�����	
	�����,��������������
��+������+���������	�
�	��	�

����	����,�	��	����������
�7����+	�
�
�	��	�,��	���	������������<�����	7������������	��	��	��
�,���+��,���,	���	�
���+��
�
��
������������
����������+	�������
	�������������������������
�������,�	��������	����������<�����
	������������
����	�������	���7��
����	��
���������
���������������������	����
�������	+��	�
�	���	����������
�����	7����	��7�����
����	��	��	����

	��<�

�
!<� ��	������1�
	���������,�>��
��	�����

����	�
�1�����
�����8���+����	�����7��

���
����7���,�������
�����
������,�����7���������	���,�������	���	���	���
�����������	�
�
����
�����
�����	�
���
������	������,�	���
��	���+���
�����	���������������
�������	����
,������������������������
���������
����7������	�
�	��	�+�������,�������
�����7������	�
�
�
��	
��+��,�������

������������64�"����	������	�
������
����,��	������,����
��	���
���������<�

�
$<� ��	���>>�
�����
�	��������+��������������������
����,��	�
�
�������������
�������	�
�	7����

�����#�����+���	��
����8�6�+��	���(��������������
�	����	��
���	�����
�	��������
���	���
	�
������
	�����������������<�����
�����������������7��
�����
�
����������;��������	���
�������	�,�������
��������	������,�����64�"�	�
�
����
��	����	����	��
	��������	��+��,���
�
���,���	��	���,�������������7�����	��
�	��	
��,�������<����
�����
��������������	;��,,������
����������
��A�

�
•� &��	���,���+��,���,	���
•� &��	���,���+��
�
��
�����
•� (	�
�>�����������,��
7	�������
���,��������
������������������	�
�;������������
�

7�������
���
�	��	�
��������	�
�����
•� �����������,�����
�����	�����+�7������
�������+��

�
%<� ��	��(	�
�>�����������7��	���
������������#�����+�+����7����������������
��	��������������

��	��
����8�6�+��	���
	��������
;�	�
����	����
	�������������������
�����
��+��������	<�
�������������
�
������������������	

��
��	���
���������,��������
���	��	���<+<��	���7���;�
�	���7	+�����	

�����	��+������+��������������������������,,����������	�����<�

�
'<� ��	���>>��	��	����������������	��+��������
��	�����	�
�
�	����+�,���+������+�	�
���

�����

	���������������7��
	��������+	���	�����������	���6��1����,��
;�������������<���	������
	

��
��	����>>���	
��,,�����7���
����,��
�����������
��������	
�����
��	�
�,����	���	�
�
����
����,����	
��,,���������
	��������+	���	��������������������	�������������������	��
������+��������	��	��	���������������	����
����,��
<�

Page 21



� � �

���������	���
�����
�
�	�����	������������

� � � � � �
�

�
�

� ��������������
���������������
�

����������	�
����
��
��
�
�������������
��������
�����
���
�
���������
��

�� �� !�" �#���$���%����
& '�
��

�
���
�����
��������������������������
��������
������
�

(� �� !�" �#���	���%���
�
�
������)���
�

 ���	�������!�������"�����#�
�
�����
�$� ��
��������
!��������
�
%&'()�*%+)(,�

*� ����+�"��
�#�"���
���#��& '�

-���
���
���������� ��
������

,� 	#-�%��+� � .�����
������������������
�����������
������
��
������
�

•�  �����������
�����#��
������������������
•� ����������
•� -����
���������
�/��������0��
�����
��
�
�!
�1���
�2�
•� -����
����������
�����������
•� -��������
�������������
������������������
•� 3
����������
������

�
.� �/��0����#�"����1�

�
�

 �����������������
���������-��
�����
�����������������
������
�������
�������
������������
��������������
���
�

2� 
������������
/�� �"��
��!�% �& �����#������
�"3����3�%4��"�'�
�

������������������������
������$������������������
�����
������
��
���������������
����4�
•� 3��������
�����
�������
����������
����������#�����������

��
������
�������������
•� ��������
����������������������
�������������
�

5� �/���0����/�!!�"����0��
3�"6��3���/� ���+��01�
�

 ��������
��	�
����
��
��
�
�������������
����������������
��
��
������
�����4�

�

5�����
��
�������� "�������������������#���
�

Page 22



7� �/�������0�����"�����
3�1�

 ���������
�����������������������
���������
���
������
����
���
��������������
��������������
�����#��
��������
��������������
������
����
������������������
�����������������#�����������
����������
�������
��
�
������������4�
�
6����������������
����������
��
�����
������
�
�!
�1��������
�7�
6����������������
����������������7�
���������������
����������
����������7�
6����
�
���
���
������
��
���������
��
����
����������������
��
3
����������
����7�
-�
���������
����������������
��7�

�
89� :�0�����0�����"�����

3����1�&0��"�  � ;� ����
+� �� ;�#�%����4"3�
�"��������"���%)'�
�

.����������$��������������
�����
�$����#����
���
��������
�

88� �/���0��0�"6��3�)�  ���������
��������8�������
���������������������
�������������
�
������������������
�������
��
�
�������������
4�
�

8�� ������#���<���=�
$��� �

������/.���������)%&&�
�

8(� >�"� ������/���!��-�%� �
����"������+� �?�!��" �


/��

8*� ����+�"��	+��+��0��"3�
�%�4��"=���"���?�
���#�� /�!������ ��
�"3���"� /����4!�&���
#��3�%�3�3�#=�	���
#������ 4#��  ��"����
	�@�

��������
�������������6����������.�����
����
����

8,� �/����0�����/����!����
��1���/��0���������
�/����"���3�%� ��"�
�

 ���������������������
�����������������
��$�����6���������
��
.�����
��
�
�����
��9������
��-���
���/-��
����

8.� �� �4�%� �& �����"�;�
�� ���%/;��A!��� ;� ��� �
+� �� ��"3� ���"'�
�

���������-����-��
��������������������
���������������������

82� � ��/� �!���������
 ���4���=��� !�" �#����=�
�"��/��!�"��1�

"��

85� �/�4�3��"=���/���!�"���
#���"+��+�3��"��/� �
��+��01����� ��0/���"3�
0/=1�

"/��

87� ������/���� ���"3���"� /�
���4!�#�"����������%�B
�!��"���"=�!�� �"& '�
�"����/��!�"��)�

"��

�9� :�0�3�� ��/� ���"�����
%��!������!�������� 1�

��������
��������$�5���������-����
�����4�

�
�

�

Page 23



T
as

k 
an

d 
Fi

ni
sh

 R
ev

ie
w

 2
01

1

Sc
ru

ti
ny

 T
as

k 
&

 F
in

is
h 

W
in

te
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Page 24



W
ha

t 
is

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

?

 
W

in
te

r 
Se

as
on

 is
 O

ct
ob

er
 t

o 
A

pr
il

 
Pr

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

ro
ad

s 
in

 P
ly

m
ou

th
 

Po
st

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

to
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

(s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
, a

fte
r 

ro
ad

s, 
do

in
g 

C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

as
 fi

rs
t, 

th
en

 b
y 

ri
sk

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 4
00

+ 
gr

it 
bi

ns
 (t

ot
al

 2
00

t 
to

 r
ef

ill
).

 
C

le
ar

an
ce

 o
f s

no
w

 o
ff 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
ro

ad
s.

 
Sn

ow
 c

le
ar

an
ce

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
ro

ad
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

s
 

Sn
ow

 c
le

ar
an

ce
 o

n 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

if 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e

Page 25



L
eg

al
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 li

ab
ili

ti
es

 
D

ut
y 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ct

, 1
98

0 
w

hi
ch

 e
m

br
ac

es
 W

in
te

r 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 fo
r 

a 
hi

gh
w

ay
 m

ai
nt

ai
na

bl
e 

at
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 
ex

pe
ns

e 
ar

e 
un

de
r 

a 
du

ty
 t

o 
en

su
re

, s
o 

fa
r 

as
 is

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
, t

ha
t 

sa
fe

 p
as

sa
ge

 a
lo

ng
 a

 h
ig

hw
ay

is 
no

t 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 
by

 s
no

w
 o

r 
ic

e.

Page 26



Fr
om

 t
he

 W
in

te
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
O

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 P

la
n

 
14

 p
re

-t
re

at
m

en
t 

ro
ut

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ef

in
ed

 -
7 

Pr
im

ar
y 

an
d 

7 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

ro
ut

es
. T

he
se

 d
et

ai
l r

oa
ds

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

he
av

ily
 u

se
d 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 h
os

pi
ta

ls,
 fi

re
 s

ta
tio

ns
 e

tc
. 

 
W

e 
pr

e-
tr

ea
t 

th
is 

de
fin

ed
 n

et
w

or
k 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 t

he
 fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 

fr
os

t, 
ic

e 
or

 t
he

 la
yi

ng
 o

f s
no

w
.

 
4 

sn
ow

 r
ou

te
s 

pr
io

ri
tis

e 
w

he
n 

sn
ow

 is
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

.
 

O
ve

r 
40

0 
gr

it 
bi

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
al

ly
 p

la
ce

d 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 p

re
-s

al
t

th
e 

fo
ot

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k.

Page 27



W
e 

al
so

 s
up

po
rt

 o
th

er
s 

in
 

P
ly

m
ou

th

 
C

re
m

at
or

iu
m

 -
su

pp
ly

 o
f s

al
t 

bi
ns

.
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
to

 s
om

e 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 r

id
es

.
 

Fe
rr

y 
po

rt
 -

gr
itt

in
g

 
To

rp
oi

nt
 F

er
ry

 -
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
a

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
-t

re
at

m
en

t 
of

 W
in

ds
or

 H
ou

se
 C

ar
 p

ar
k,

 
Pr

in
ce

 R
oc

k 
D

ep
ot

 a
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 2

0t
 o

f s
al

t
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 G

ra
nt

 fu
nd

 -
ad

di
tio

na
l g

re
en

 g
ri

t 
bi

ns
 

La
st

 y
ea

r 
w

e 
al

so
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 S
ch

oo
ls,

 N
H

S 
D

er
ri

fo
rd

, P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

Fi
re

 B
ri

ga
de

s 
w

he
n 

th
ei

r 
sa

lt 
st

oc
ks

 r
an

 o
ut

, a
nd

 C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 w

an
te

d 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

sa
lt.

Page 28



Sa
lt

 s
up

pl
y

 
La

st
 y

ea
r 

w
e 

us
ed

 a
 t

ot
al

 o
f 1

52
2 

to
nn

es
 

W
e 

no
w

 h
av

e 
in

 s
to

ck
 8

70
 t

on
ne

s
 

A
s 

us
ed

 w
e 

w
ill

 r
e-

or
de

r 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

6 
da

y 
re

se
rv

e.
 

W
e 

ca
n 

ca
ll 

up
on

 lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

, e
.g

. D
C

C
 a

nd
 A

m
ey

 H
am

ps
hi

re
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
 

La
st

 y
ea

r 
C

en
tr

al
 G

ov
 “

Sa
lt 

C
el

l”
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

na
tio

na
l d

ist
ri

bu
tio

n,
 

se
tt

in
g 

up
 a

 2
50

,0
00

t 
st

oc
kp

ile
.

 
A

m
ey

 b
ro

ug
ht

 in
 s

hi
pm

en
ts

 t
o 

So
ut

ha
m

pt
on

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t.

Page 29



L
as

t 
ye

ar

 
36

 E
ar

ly
 m

or
ni

ng
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 (E
M

I)
 

24
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

ro
ut

es
 a

ct
io

ns
 

 
18

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 r

ou
te

s 
ac

tio
ns

 
Sn

ow
 p

lo
ug

hs
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 a
ct

io
n 

on
 2

 d
ay

s.
 

Re
pl

en
ish

ed
 g

ri
t 

bi
ns

 3
 t

im
es

 
In

 g
en

er
al

 it
 t

ak
es

 4
 h

ou
rs

 t
o 

tr
ea

t 
th

e 
7 

pr
im

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ro

ut
es

 
EM

I t
w

o 
gr

itt
er

s 
di

sp
at

ch
ed

 t
o 

ch
ec

k 
kn

ow
n 

w
et

 s
po

ts
 a

nd
 

ch
ec

k 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k.
 C

an
 e

sc
al

at
e 

if 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

fu
ll 

ac
tio

n.

Page 30



G
ri

t 
bi

ns
, o

ve
r 

40
0 

an
d 

gr
ow

in
g!

 
A

ct
ua

lly
 h

ol
d 

sa
lt 

no
t 

gr
it

 
N

ot
 a

ll 
gr

it 
bi

ns
 a

re
 H

M
PE

 
C

an
 b

ec
om

e 
lit

te
r 

bi
ns

, s
om

e 
pe

op
le

 c
om

pl
ai

n 
th

ey
 d

on
’t 

w
an

t 
th

em
 b

y 
th

ei
r 

pr
op

er
ty

, a
bu

se
d 

by
 o

th
er

s.
 

In
 o

ur
 p

la
n 

w
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

ut
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

hi
st

or
ic

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ne

w
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:

!
O

n 
a 

al
re

ad
y 

tr
ea

te
d 

ro
ut

e?
 T

he
n 

no
rm

al
ly

 r
ej

ec
te

d
!

Is
 t

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
tr

af
fic

 s
en

sit
iv

e,
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

vo
lu

m
e?

!
Is

 t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

a 
re

pe
tit

iv
e 

ac
ci

de
nt

 / 
in

ci
de

nt
 s

po
t?

!
Is

 t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

co
m

m
en

su
ra

te
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 s
ite

s?

Page 31



T
hi

s 
ye

ar
’s

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

 
Pl

ym
ou

th
s 

G
ro

w
th

 a
ge

nd
a,

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 
Re

vi
se

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 s

pr
ea

d 
ra

te
s.

 
Re

vi
se

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

, c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

a 
fo

ot
w

ay
 

ar
ea

s.
 

D
iff

er
en

t 
pl

an
t, 

M
ul

tih
og

un
it.

Page 32



Id
ea

s 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

 
St

oc
k 

pi
le

 fo
r 

C
or

po
ra

te
 u

se
? 

-P
C

C
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
w

n 
a 

30
00

t 
Sa

lt 
Ba

rn
 a

t 
Pr

in
ce

 R
oc

k 
, c

ou
ld

 t
hi

s 
be

 b
et

te
r 

us
ed

.
 

G
ri

t 
Bi

n 
re

vi
ew

 -
do

 w
e 

ha
ve

 t
oo

 m
an

y?
 A

re
 t

he
y 

in
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 
pl

ac
es

? 
ho

w
 d

o 
w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 n

ew
 r

eq
ue

st
s?

 
G

ri
t 

Bi
n 

Po
lic

y 
–

to
 h

el
p 

us
 d

ef
in

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
de

al
 w

ith
 n

ew
 

re
qu

es
ts

Page 33



���������	
���
�������������
���
�	������������ �	����	���������
�������� ����

��
�������
�	�������

��������	�
� ���
�	
�����
�����������
���
��	���	���

����� �

��������	�
� 	�����
�����
�����������
���
��	���	���

����� �

���	�������
� ��

� 		��!��"��	��� #���$� �
���	�������
� %�����
�����
��&#� #���$� �
����	������
� '
��
�
�������
� #&���� �
����	������
� �	(�
��� #&���� �
���	�)�����
��� ��*�+
����	�����
����� ##��#� �
���������
�+
��� ,��+-���.�
 � #$��#� �
,��(
)��
�/�)� ,	�����
��	��� &�,&� �
,����
)���	�
� 0����
)���
�+
��� ���$� �
,������
���	�
� ,������-�����
�+
��� ���&� �
,���
���	�
� %�����
�'�����
(	�� #1��#� �
,
�+	��!��"��	��� /
����	 ���	��� ##����� �
,
��
���	�
� %�����
�����
��##�� #����� �
,

��	��/��"� ���
�	
�����
��#� #$���� �
,
�����-�����
�+
��� %�����
�����
���&� #����� �
,
�����-�����
�+
��� �	��
����	�
� #����� �
,
����
��2����������
�����
�

3�4�
����	�
� ��5#� �

,
����
��2����������
�����
�

!	��-�����	�
� ��5#� �

,
����
��2����������
�����
�

�	�����	������(�(	����1� ��5#� �

,
� �+"���
��
� ���� ������
��
� ��,&� �
,��+-���.�
 � �	��-����
����
�����*��+��	�� 6�5�� �
,��+"�	�
���
�+
��� 3��+	+"� &�,&� �
,��+"��	�
���	�
� %((	���
�7
��	����	�
� #6�3�� �
,�		��������	�
� /����	���	��� #���$� �
,	������	��� �������
��	��� ���$� �
,	������	��� 8��+��	��/�� �+"���
��
� 6��$� �
,	�����	��3���� %((	���
��
�	������	�
� #&���� �
,��
������	�
� %�����
�����
��6� #��3�� �
,�
����	 ����	�
� %�����
�����
��#� #���$� �
,�
����	 ���	��� 0���	 �����
��� #����� �
,�
����	 ���	��� ,���
��-�0��
� #����� �
,�
����	��� ������	+"��	��� ���$� �
,��� 
����	��� 7
���7	��-���
���������

�� #1��#� �
,��� 
����	��� �-��+-�/�)�����	(�
��� #1��#� �
,�	���
)�!��"��	��� 8��+��	���
���,
����
��2����������

�����
�
��5#� �

,�	��-�	����	�
� 0	+"����	����
��
� #��,�� �
,�)��		��/��"� 2����������-
��� #���$� �
,���-
����	��� ��)�	����	�
� ��,&� �
,���-
����	��� /
�����)���	�
� ���$� �
,���-
����	��� 7
������(�(	�������
��$�� 6��$� �
,���-
����	��� %((	���
����(�(	�������
��$6� #1��$� �
,���-
����	��� 0��(�(	���$1� ##��$� �

Page 34



,���-
����	��� %�����
�����
��##�� #���$� �
,�
���.�������	�
� ,�
���.���������
� ���&� �
,�
���.�������	�
� ,�
���.�����/�)� ���&� �
,���
��-�0��
� ,
��	 �!��"��	��� ##�3�� �
,���
����	��� %((	���
����(�(	�������
���� #��,#� �
,���
����	��� ���4�����
��� #��,#� �
,���-���!��"��	��� ,�
�����	����	��� ##�3�� �
,���	 �3���� %�����
�����
��#1� #6���� �
,)�	����
��
� %�����
�����
���6� ����� �
���(
��	 �����

�� %�����
�����
��&$� #��,2� �
���(�	��.�
 � 0��(�(	���#� ��3�� �
�����/		��.�
 � 0��(�(	���#� ��3$� �
�-���	+"���	�
� �	���
�����
� 6�5�� �
�-����	���	��� 0����	 �
��	��� ���&� �
�-����	���	��� ��	��
�	���	��� ���&� �
�-
��)���

�0��
� ���'����+
�0��
� #��5�� �
�-
��
�
�
���
�	��9��	�
�

%�����
�����
���#� #����� �

�-��
�	����
��
� %((	���
��:��
����
��
����	�
� ����� �
�-��+-�3���� 0��(�(	�������
���6������66� #���#� �
�-��+-�!��"��	��� %((	���
�����
���� ��3�� �
�-��+-��	��� !�+"�!�
�����
� ��3�� �
�-��+-��	��� %�����
�����
���$� #6�5&� �
�-��+-��	��� 0��(�(	�������
��#1� #6�5&� �
���
�	����
��
� ���-�
��-���
��
� #&���� �
�	�
��		"�0��
� ,	�����	��3���� #&���� �
�	�
��	 ��3���� ,
�	 ����(�(	���5�������
��
� #6��$� �
�	�
��	 ��3���� �
+	�����
��
� #6��$� �
�	�
��	 ��3���� 7
���/�4
�
	���5���� #6��$� �
�	� �����	��� �-
��	������
��� 6�3&� �
�	� �����	��� %�����
��
��� 6�3&� �
�	���
)�����
� ���������	�
� 6��$� �
�	�(��������
� %((	���
�7
 �-�������
� #��5�� �
�	(�
��	��� ����"
��,����
�3���� #&���� �
�	(�
��	��� �
���	
�����
���#� #&���� �
�	�� 		���	��� �-
��(���
)� #����� �
�	�	����	��!��+
� �����������
��
� ����� �
�	��3���� ����
)��	��� #&�,&� �
�	)(		�� ����(��"� #$�3�� �
�	)(		�� ,)����� �)��
�
��+�	������ #$�3�� �
��
����		"�����
� %((	���
����(�(	������ 6�3&� �
��	�� �)� !�)������
��	��� #&���� �
��	 �-�����	��� ,)�
		� �)��	��
�"��"�!��+
� ��,&� �
����
��/�)� 0��(�(	�������
���� #��,#� �
����������
� 0	�-
��	����	�
� #����� �
���"����

��0��
� ;��
� 		���	��� #&��&� �
��� �����
�+
��� %�����
�����
��6� #$�5&� �
�
���3���� %�����
�����
��$�9&�� #6�5&� �
�

��!��"� %�
�	��/�)� #$��$� �
�	������	������
� �����+"������	��� #����� �
�	������	������
� ;(�	����	�
� #����� �
�	�
�����
��� %�����
��-	(� #$��$� �
���	
�����
��� ���	�)�����
��� ##��#� �

Page 35



���+�����!��"� %�����
��
���
������3	�
� #$�5&� �
����
���	��� 0��(�(	���!6��� ���#� �
������
������
� '		������.�
 � ���#� �
�����
����	�
� %�����
�����
���� #��3�� �
�����	�
��	��� ��	 �-�����	��� ���&� �
�����	�
�.�
 � �����	�
�0��
� #6��&� �
����� 		������
� !�)������
��	��� 6�3$� �
�

	���0��
� �-
��
�
�
����	��� #����� �
�����+"������	��� ,)����(�(	�������
����� #���#� �
�����+"������	��� ����
�
�����
�+
���	((	���
�&� #����� �
������	���	��� ��
4��������	�
� #6�3$� �
��
	�����
�+
��� %�����
�����
��#��� #����� �
�����	"
���	�
� 5�
�-
	���/��"� 6�5�� �
5�����
 ���
��
� ��� �����
�+
��� #$�5&� �
5�����
 ���
��
� '��	��0��
� #$�5&� �
5�����
 �/�)� 5�����
 ���
��
� #$�5&� �
5����
)���	�
� %((	���
�����
���&� ���&� �
5����	�	��-��	��� ������
	����	��� &��$� �
5�
�
�		���	��� '		��0��
� ����� �
5�
�
�		���	��� %�����
�����
��#�1� ����� �
5	���3���� %((	���
�,�	 ��������

�� ##��&� �
5	��
��3
��-��� 5	������������
��
� 6���� �
5	�
��
����	��� %�����
�����
���1� #6��&� �
5	�
��
����	��� %�����
�����
��&�� #6��&� �
5	�
��
����	��� 0��(�(	�������
��#� #6��&� �
5	������������
��
� %�����
��+-		�� ����� �
5	���		"
��	���� ���
�	
�����
���6� #��,&� �
5	����������
�+
��� %�����
�����
��#��� ##��#� �
5	����������
�+
��� %�����
�����
��&&�*��+��	��	
�

�(����-����
##��#� �

5�
��-�������
��� %�����
�����
��#�� ��5$� �
5�
�-
	���/��"� ������"
���	�
� 6�5�� �
5�	��
�
�����
�+
��� �	(�
��	�
��	��� ���#� �
5�	��
�
�����
�+
��� ,)����

�����
(���
�����	(� ���#� �
5��<
-������
��
� 5��<
-�������
� #6���� �
5��<
-������
��
� �-��
�!��"��	��� #6���� �
�
��	���0��
� %�����
��+-		�� #&��&� �
��
���	��� %�����
�����
��$$� #&��$� �
��
���	��� !��"��	�
�0��
� #&��$� �
�	����������
��� �
���+��

���	�
� &��&� �
�		�
 
���3���� %�����
�����
��$�� #���#� �
�		�
 
���!��"� �	����-��
�!��"��	��� #6���� �
�		�
 
����	��� 3	�� 		����
��
��	��	��
��� #6���� �
�		�
 
����	��� 0	 
��!��"�����
� #6���� �
�	� 
�������
��� �	� 
�����	�
� #6���� �
�	� 
�������
��� �����	��!��"��	��� #6���� �
�����-�����	�
� %�����
�����
��$� #&�,&� �
������
)�����
��� %�����
�����
��&9�� #����� �
��
��
�
����	��� %�����
�����
���$� #����� �
��

��+�
�� ,����+	��
��	��� #6�5$� �
��

��+�
�� ����
��.�����
� #6�5$� �
��

����"��	��� 8�����(�
�	��0�(�	���	��� $��#� �
��

����"��	��� %((	���
����
�	��!��+
� $��#� �

Page 36



��

� 		��!��"�
��	�
�

0��(�(	�������
��#� #���$� �

��

� 		��!��"�
�	���

7
������
��-��	���� #���$� �

��

� 		��!��"�
�	���

0��(�(	�������
��#&� #���$� �

��

� 		��!��"�
�	���

%�����
�����
����� #���$� �

��

� 		��!��"�
�	���

0��(�(	�������
��#6� #���$� �

�����(	������	�
� 0��(�(	�������
��#$� #$��#� �
�����(	������	�
� ���
�	
����(�(	�������
��#�� #$��#� �
� )���	��� 7
������(�(	�������
���� #��,#� �
3���
��	����	�
� 0��(�(	�������
��#&&�� 6���� �
3�����	�
� %((	���
����(�(	�������
���� #���#� �
3�������
� ,)����(�(	����&�*��+��	��	
�

0�����	�
��	���
##���� �

3���0��
� ��	�
�	����
(	��	��-���� ##�5�#� �
3���
	���!��+
� %�����
�����
��##� #1��#� �
3����
)��	��� '�����
����	��� #���$� �
3��� 
�����
��
� �-
�
	����	��� �1��&� �
3� "���
�����
��� %�����
�����
��6#� ����� �
3� "���
�����
��� 7
������(�(	�������
��&� ����� �
3� �-	���/�)� %((	���
�����
��#�� #����� �
3�)
��	��� ,)�������
	��
�.�(��)����
�
���� �1�,$� �
3�)
��	��� �	��-�����(��"�
�����+
� �1�,&� �
3
��)�!��+
� ����
�����

�� #��,#� �
3
��)�!��+
� !
����������

�� #��,#� �
3
�
��	��3
��-��� %�����
�����
��#��� #��5$� �
3
�
��	��3
��-��� 5		� �)���	�
�����
���#�� #��5$� �
3
����)�����
� � ��5�� �
3
����)�����
� �� ��5�� �
3
����)�����
� �� ��5�� �
3�+"	�)�����
� �
� 		������
� #���&� �
3��-+�
�
�����
��� ,)����
� ��5$� �
3���+�
�������
� /	�����
���
��
� #��5&� �
3���+�
�������
� ����
 �)� #��5�� �
3	��)�!��"�����
� '��
	���0��
� ��5#� �
3	��)�!��"�����
� 0��(�(	������� ��5#� �
3	��)+�	
���	��� %((	���
�����
��$�� #����� �
3	�� 		����
��
� �		�
 
����	�������	(� #6���� �
3	��
��-��
� !�
��	����)���	�
� ���$� �
3	�
��!��"� 3		
��	��� #����� �
3		
�3���� �-���	�
���	�
� #����� �
3		
�3���� ,
���.�
���	�
� #����� �
3		"����)���
��
� 7
�����	�
� #����� �
3	��-���0��
� '��)��
�����
��
� &��$� �
3	�
	�����	�
� �	�
��������
� #6���� �
3���
����	�
� �

��!��"�����
� #$�5$� �
8�+"�	����	�
� =	�"��	��� #1��#� �
8��
�����

�� %�����
�������3	��
� #��,&� �
8��
�����

�� %�����
�0)�-
��3	��
� #��,&� �
8�����
�����
��� ���
�	
�����
��#�� #��3&� �

Page 37



8�����
�����
��� ��

� 		��!��"��	���� #��3&� �
�
����
�����
� 3���+�
�������
�� #��5&� �
�
����
�����
� %((	���
�����
����� #��5&� �
�
����
�����
� %�����
�����
��#1�� #��5&� �
�
����
�����
� ,)����(�(	���#1�>�16�� #��5&� �
�
��
��3������	�
� �	(�
��	���� #&��&� �
�
� �+"���
�+
��� '���
��/�)������
��� 6�5&� �
�
� �+"���
�+
��� %((	���
�����
��#�#����+���(��"� 6�5&� �
���" �����	��� ,���-
����	��� ���&� �
����
������
� %((	���
�����
����� #6���� �
���((����	�
� %((	���
��-
��	�����	�
� �1�,�� �
���((����	�
� ���?�
?��+�
��� �1�,�� �
��

�
�����
��� '�����
����	��� #���#� �
0�"
�.�
 ���	�
� %�����
�����
��&�� ��5#� �
0�"
�.�
 �����
� %�����
�����
�����9��� ��5#� �
0�"
�.�
 ��	���� %((	���
�����
���#� ��5#� �
0�"
���
�����
� %�����
�����
��#�� ����� �
0�����(-�����
��� 8��+��	���
������(�(	���#� #1�,#� �
0������
�����
��� 0������
���	�
� 6���� �
0����
)���
�+
��� 2��0����
)���	�
����
�	
�#��� &�,$� �
0��"-���0��
� !�)������
��	��� #&�,$� �
0��"-���0��
� �-
��
��� #&�,$� �
0
��
�
�������
� /���
��
�
���
�+
��� ��,�� �
0
)(��"�����
� %((	���
����(�(	�������
���� 6��&� �
0
)(��"�/��"� %((	���
��	������)��
���
� 6��&� �
0��"
��)�0��
�/
��� /
���0��(�(	�������
���#�@��� #��,#� �
0���	���	��� ��� &��$� �
0�(�	��.��
�0��
� �
���	
��-���
��-��	��� #����� �
0����
���-��	��� %�����
�����
��&� ����� �
0	+"����	����
��
� �)�
�	����	�
� #��,�� �
0	���0
)� 3��-
��'	 �
�� #���$� �
0	���'
��	 � '
��	 �.�
 � #&���� �
0	���!��"�����
� ���
�
	�����	�
� ���$� �
0		�
�
��-�!��"� %�����
�����
���� ��,#� �
0	��-�	�	��-��	��� ����-	(
��	��� ��,�� �
0	 
��5�����	��� '
��	 ����
� #��5�� �
0�+���0��
� %((	���
����(�(	����� #&��$� �
0���	 ��	��� ,
��	 �!��"��	��� ##�3�� �
0)� 		����
��
� %�����
�����
����� #&��$� �
0)� 		����
��
� %�����
�����
��#� #&��$� �
'���	+"�����
� =
���(��	�
���	�
� #����� �
'���
� 
����	��� ;��
����
� #&��&� �
'���������	�
� %�����
�����
��#1� #���&� �
'����	������
� ���!
�
�������
� #���#� �
'���
	�������
��� !�"
��	��� #$�5&� �
'��	��!��"� %�����
�����
���� #��5&� �
'���
����	��� %�����
�����
���1� ���&� �
'
��	 �/�)� %�����
�����
���&� #&���� �
'
��������
�+
��� 3���
�����	�
� &�,&� �
'
��
�
������
� ,)�������	(� #&��&� �
'��
	���0��
� ����	�����
��)����(�(	���#� ��5#� �
'��
	���0��
� 2���-
�����	 �� ��5#� �
'���
��/�)� 0������
�����
��� 6�5�� �

Page 38



'���
��/�)� %((	���
����(�(	�������
����� 6�5�� �
'��� 		������
� ,)����

�����
(���
� 6�3�� �
'��� 		������
� �-
�����	�
� 6�3�� �
'		��0��
� 5
��
����	��� ����� �
'	�
����	�
� ����
���	��� &��$� �
'	�
����	�
� ������
	���.�
 � &��$� �
'	 -�)��	��� %((	���
�����
��#�� ����� �
7
 �!��"��	��� %�����
�����
��$� #��5�� �
7	�
	�"��	��� ���
�	
�����
��$#� #$��&� �
7	�����)�3���� !
��	���	��� ����� �
7	��-��(�	����	�
� 0��(�(	�������
��#� ��5�� �
%���0������	��� %�����
����'��)���-��+-� #����� �
%���0������	��� %((	���
�/)+��


��	��� #����� �
%�
�	��/�)� %((	���
����(�(	���#1� #$��$� �
%�
�	��/�)� 0��(�(	�������
��#� #$��$� �
!������	������
� !������	����	�
� 6��&� �
!

"����
��
� �-��+-��	��� #6��&� �
!
��

����
�+
��� %�����
�����
���$� &��&� �
!
����-�����
��� '���
��/�)���������� 6�5$� �
!
�
�����	�
� %�����
�����
��#�� �1��&� �
!
�
���!��"���	�
� !
�
���!��"�0��
� ����� �
!
�
��
�
�����	�
� �����+"������	��� #����� �
!�"
��	��� %�����
�����
����� #$��&� �
!�"
��	��� %((	���
�����
��6�� #$��&� �
!�"
��	��� %((	���
��-	(�� #$��&� �
!��
 		������
� %((	���
�����
��&#� ��3$� �
!�)������
��	��� ����� 		������
� 6�3$� �
!�)������
��	��� %�����
���
�
��)��3	��
� #&��$� �
!	�
�����
� �� �������	�
� #����� �
!	�
�����
� %((	���
�����
��$�� #����� �
!	�
�����
� ,
�����-�����
�+
��� #����� �
!	��������	�
� 0��
���+"��	��� #����� �
!	��������	�
� 0��(�(	�������
���� #����� �
!	 �������
��� 5����0��
� ���&� �
!	 �����������
� 0		�
�
��-�0��
� ����� �
!	 �����������
� 0��(�(	�������
��$1� ����� �
!���+
�'����+
��	��� ���+	��
��	��� #��,�� �
A����)�!��"��	��� �	�����!��"��	��� #6��&� �
���-�
��-���
��
� �
��+	��
���	�
� #����� �
��(-�
������
� 3	����-�/��"� #6���� �
�
���+��

��	��� �	 �������	�
� #����� �
�
���+��

��	��� �
���+��

���	�
� #6���� �
�
���+��

��	��� ,�		��!��"� #����� �
�
������	���	��� 3	��)+�	
���	��� #����� �
�
������	���	��� %((	���
�����
��$6� #����� �
�
���
�-�������
��� �	�
���	��� 6��&� �
�
�
��	����	��� �	��-�	
������	�	��-��	��� #6�3�� �
�
�
��	����	��� %�����
�����
��#1� #6�3�� �
�
�
��	����	��� 0��(�(	�������
��##� #6�3�� �
�
�
��	���/�)� �
�
��	�����
�+
��� �1��&� �
����
 �)� '���	+"�����
� #����� �
�	�	�	��-���
��
� !	 �����������
� ����� �
�	+-
	�����	�
� 8��+��	�����(�(	�������
��$1� ����� �

Page 39



�	+-
	�����	�
� 8��+��	��	
�/
��-��(�
���!��+
� ����� �
�	����)�����
��� �	�
�����������	�
�����
���� #&��&� �
�	����)�����
��� '	��
)���	�
� #&��&� �
�	�
 		����	�
� ��

�-������	�
� #6���� �
�	 ���/�)� %((	���
�'�(�
�/�)� ��3$� �
����
��/		�� ,)��+-		��
�����+
� ���$� �
�)������	�
� %((	���
��)������	�
� 6�5�� �
�����
��	��� !		�
�!��"��	��� #1�,#� �
�����
��	��� �		(
���	�
����(�(	���#1� #1�,#� �
�+-		����	�
� %�����
�����
��$1� #&���� �
�

�	����
��
� %�����
�����
��&�� #����� �
�

�	����
��
� %�����
�����
���1� #����� �
�

�	����
��
� %((	���
�����
��#$1� #����� �
�

�	����
��
� %((	���
�����
��#&�� #����� �
�

�	����
��
� 0�(��	�
���
�+
��� #����� �
�
����
��	��� 0	(
���	��� ##�5$� �
�
�"��"�!��+
� ���*��+��	�� ��,&� �
�
)�	����	��� �	�(�	����
��
� #��,�� �
�-
�
	����	��� �-
�
	�����
�+
��� �1�,&� �
�-
�
	����	��� �����	���	��� �1�,&� �
�-
�
	����	��� ��	�
�!	�� �)���	�
� �1�,&� �
�	��-���
���
��
� %�����
�����
��#�� #6�5�� �
�	��-���
���
��
� ���	����	�
� #6�5�� �
�	��-���
���
��
� %�����
�����
��6� #6�5�� �
�	��-���
���
��
� �	��-���
���	�
� #6�5�� �
�	��- �)�����
� %((	���
�����
��#�$� &�,�� �
�(

� 
���/��"� �(

� 
�����
�+
��� #����� �
�(����-������

�� %�����
�����
��#6� ##��#� �
���,��
��4�,)?!���� %�����
�
��
������	�� #1��#� �
���8	-����	��� %�����
����0�"
��3	�(�+
� #��,&� �
���'����+
��	��� 3
�
�����
��� #��5�� �
���'����+
�.�
 � 0��(�(	�������
���� #��3�� �
���.��+
������

�� %�����
�����
��&� #1��&� �
�������+	��
��	��� %�����
�����
��6�����
��
�

	((	���
�������	(�
#6���� �

�������+	��
��	��� %�����
�����
����#9��� #6���� �
�������+	��
��	��� %�����
�����
����� #6���� �
�������+	��
��	��� %�����
�����
��6�� #6���� �
�������+	��
��	��� %((	���
����(�(	���$�� #6���� �
�����	���	��� �	�)�,�		"��
���
������3	�
� #&��$� �
�����	���	��� %�����
��	�)�,�		"��
���
������

3	�
�
#&��$� �

�����	���	��� 3������
�%���!
	(�
��3	�
� #&��$� �
��

��!��"��	��� /
���!��"�����
� #��3&� �
��

�����	�
� 0��
���+"��	������(�(	����� #����� �
��
��� �)��	��� �-��+-��	��� #6�5&� �
����������	��� ����������	��� ��,�� �
���
��	����	�
� %�����
�����
��#�� ��5#� �
���
��	��5	��	���	��� %((	���
����(�(	���!#��$� ���#� �
���
��	��5	��	���	��� %((	���
����(�(	���!#���� ���#� �
���
��	��5	��	���	��� 5	4 		������
������(�(	���$�� ���#� �
���
��	���	��� ,�	���
)�!��"���	�
� ��5#� �
�����	����
��
� /�� �+"���
��
� ��5#� �

Page 40



������	+"��	��� %((	���
�����
����������
��� ��5$� �
�
�������
��� ����
�!��"��	��� #���&� �
�-
��
��� 0��(�(	�������
��#&&� #&�,$� �
�-
�3
��-
��� 0��(�(	�������
���� ���$� �
���-
��	��� %

�/		�
	�����
��
� #&��$� �
�	��0��
� %�����
�,���
��-�'��	�� ##�3�� �
�	 
�
�
�������
� %�����
��������(�(	���#� ����� �
����
����	�
� %�����
�##��%���0������	��� #��,�� �
;��
�-�����	��� %�����
��
���
������3	�
� #���#� �
.���
)�.�
 ���	�
� �

��!��"�����
�����
���� #���$� �
.���
)�.�
 ��	��� %�����
�����
��#�� #����� �
.���
)�.�
 ��	��� %�����
�����
��$� #����� �
.�+����
�����
��� 7	�����)�3���� ��,�� �
.�+����
�����
��� 8��+��	��	((	���
����(�(	���#� ��,�� �
.�+�	�����	��� %�����
�����
���$1� ����� �
/����!��"� 7���
���1� #��5�� �
/�������	��� 7
�������
���	��� &�,$� �
/
��-�)���	�
� ���*��+��	�� �1�,�� �
/
����	���
�!��"� %�����
�����
��#�� #���$� �
/
����)��	��� %((	���
�����
���� #6�3�� �
/
����)��	��� 8��+��	���	���
����	��� #6�3�� �
/
����)��	��� %((	���
��	���
����	��� #6�3�� �
/
�������	�
� ���*��+��	�� #��5&� �
/
�� 		������
��� '���
��/�)� 6��&� �
/
��
�������
� �����
����
� #����� �
/
��
�
��� %�����
��+-		��
�����+
� #��5$� �
/
��
�
��� 3
�
��	��3
��-��� #��5$� �
/-���,��"��	��� ,)����(�(	�������� ���&� �
/-���	�+�	���0��
� 0��(�(	�������
���6� &��$� �
/�������	�
� %((	���
�����
��#� &��$� �

/����	���	��� %((	���
�����0�+���@��	�� #����� �
/	��
�
)��	��� %�����
�����
���6�����������-�

!�����
�
����� �

/	��
�
)��	��� ���
�	
�����
������ ����� �
/	��
� 		��0��
� �)+��


�����
��� #����� �
/	��
� 		��0��
� ���

�
�����
��
� #����� �
/	��
� 		��0��
� ,������	����	�
� #����� �
/	��
� 		��0��
� �����
(-
����	��� #��5�� �
/		��
����	��� %((	���
�'
��	 ������ ���$� �
/		����������
� %�����
�����
��#1� #&�,&� �
/		����������
� ����	���	��� #&�,&� �
/		� 
����	��� 0��(�(	�������
��#�� ����� �
/)+��


��	��� %((	���
�����
��$�� #����� �
/)�-���������
��� 0��(�(	�������
���� 6��&� �
=	�"��	���� �����	���
���+
� #1��#� �
�

Page 41



PRINCIPAL GRITTING NETWORK

Access Road to Train Station P5 Clovelly Road P1
Albert Road P5 Clovelly Road P2
Alexandra Road P2 Clovelly Road P4
Alexandra Road P6 Cobourg Street P4
Alma Road P5 Cobourg Street P5
Ashwood Park Road P3 Colebrook Road P3
Beacon Park Road P5 Compton Park Road P2
Beacon Park Road P7 Cothill Road P2
Beaumont Road P1 Cothill Road P3
Beaumont Road P5 Coypool Road P2
Beechwood Avenue P7 Cremyll Street P4
Belliver Way P3 Cross Way P3
Biggin Hill P6 Crownhill Road P2
Billacombe R/B P1 CrownHill Road P6
Billacombe Road P1 Crownhill Road P7
Blandford Road P2 Cunningham Road P6
Boringdon Hill P3 Dale Road P7
Boringdon Road P3 Dean Cross P1
Bovisand Lane P1 Dean Cross Road P1
Bovisand Road P1 Dean Hill P1
Brentonside P4 Deep Lane P2
Brest Road P7 Derriford Hospital P7
Broadley Park Road P3 Derriford R/B P3
Budhead Road Slip Road P7 Derriford R/B P7
Budhead Way P2 Derriford Road P7
Budshead Road P6 Derry Cross P4
Budshead Way R/B P6 Devonport Hill P4
Caroline Place P4 Drake Circus P4
Cattedown R/B P1 Dunnet Road P6
Cattedown R/B P3 Durnford Street P4
Cattedown Road P2 Eagle Road P3
Cattedown Road P3 Eastern Wood Road P3
Centre Park Avenue P7 Ebrington Street P5
Chapel Street P4 Egerton Road P6
Charles Cross P5 Eggbuckland Road P6
Charles Cross R/B P4 Elburton Road P1
Charles Street P5 Elliot Road P4
Charles Street P4 Embankment Road P3
Charnhill Way P1 Embankment Road P1
Chumberland Road P4 Emma Place P4
Church Hill P6 Ernesettle Lane P6
Church Hill Road P1 Exeter Street P5
Church Road P1 Exeter Street P4
Clarence Place P4 Ferndale Road
Clittaford Road P3 Ferry Road P5
Clittaford Road P6 Finnigan Road P4

Page 42



Ford Hill P4 Kinterbury Street P4
Ford Park Road P7 Knighton Road P6
Forder Valley R/B P3 Laira Bridge P1
Forder Valley Road P2 Laira Bridge Road P1
Forder Valley Road P3 Laira Bridge Road P4
Fore Street P4 Langage R/B P3
Fore Street P6 Langstone Road P7
Fort Austin Avenue P2 Lanhydrock Road P6
Fort Austin Avenue P6 Larkham Lane P3
Fort Austin Avenue P7 Lawrence Road P1
Furzehatt Road P1 Linton Close P6
Gasking Street P5 Linton Road P6
Gdynia Way P2 Lipson Hill P1
George Lane P2 Lipson Hill P6
Glen Road P2 Lipson Road P1
Glen Road P3 Lipson Road P5
Golden Square P3 Lipson Road P6
Goosewell Road P1 Little Dock Lane P6
Greenbank Avenue P6 Longbridge Road P3
Greenbank Road P2 Longbrook Street P2
Greenbank Road P7 Longcause P2
Gydnia Way P3 Longfield Place P1
Gydnia Way P4 Lower Compton Road P2
Gydnia Way P5 Lucas Lane P3
Ham Drive P5 Macadam Road P1
Ham Drive P7 Macadam Road P2
Haye Road P2 Macadam Road P4
Hele Terrace P4 Manadon R/B P6
Heles Terrace traffic lights P1 Manadon R/B P7
Hender's Corner P6 Mannamead Road P2
Henderson Place P4 Mannamead Road P6
High Street P4 Maple Grove P7
Hillcrest Drive P3 Marshmills R/B P3
Hoe Approach P4 Martin Street P4
Holland Road P3 Maxwell Road P4
Honicknowle Green P2 Mayflower Street P4
Honicknowle Green R/B P6 Meavy Way P7
Honicknowle Lane P2 Meavy Way P6
Honicknowle Lane P6 Melville Road P4
Hooe Road P1 Merafeild Road P2
Horn Cross P1 Milehouse Junction P7
Houndiscombe Road P7 Milehouse Road P4
Hyde Park Road P7 Military Road P6
Jennycliff Lane P1 Millbay Road P4
Jubilee Road P6 Millbridge P4
Keyham Road P5 Molesworth Road P4
Kings Road R/B P4 Moorland Road P2
Kings Street P4 Morshead Road P7

Page 43



Mount Gould Road P1 Shakespeare Road P2
Mudge Way P2 Shallowford Road P6
Mutley Plain P5 Shapters Road P2
Mutley Plain P6 Shapters Road P4
Mutley Plain P7 Shapter's Road P5
New Park Road P2 Southway Drive P3
New Passage Hill P5 Southway Drive P6
Newnham Road P3 Springfield Road P1
North Cross R/B P4 St Andrew's Cross R/B P4
North Hill P5 St Aubuyn Road P5
North Prospect Road P7 St Budeaux By-Pass P5
North Prospect Road P5 St Budeaux Square P5
Northolt Avenue P6 St John’s Road P1
Notte Street P4 St Levan Road P4
Novorossisk Road P3 St Levan Road R/B P5
Oakfeild Terrace Road P4 St Maurice Road P2
Octagon Street P4 St Modwen Road P3
Old Laira Road P2 St Peter's Road P2
Old Laira Road (Slip Road) P3 St Peter's Road P6
Outland Road P2 St Stephen Road P2
Outland Road P5 Staddiscombe Road P1
Outland Road P7 Staddon Lane P1
Paradise Road P4 Stamford Lane P1
Park Avenue P4 Stanborough Cross P1
Park Avenue P5 Stanborough Cross P2
Parkway (Service Road) P3 Stanborough Road P1
Pemros Road P5 Steer Park Road P3
Pennycombequick R/B P5 Stoke Road P4
Pennycombequick R/B P7 Stonehouse Bridge P4
Peverell Park Road P7 Stonehouse Street P4
Pike Road P2 Strode Road P3
Plumer Road P2 Stuart Road P4
Plumer Road P7 Sutherland Road P7
Plymbridge Lane P7 Tamerton Foliot Road P6
Plymbridge Road P3 Tamerton Road P3
Plymouth Road P2 Tavistock Road P2
Plymouth Road P3 Tavistock Road P3
Pomphlett Road P1 Tavistock Road P6
Queens Road P1 Tavistock Road P7
Radford Park Road P1 The Crescent P4
Reservoir Road P1 The Octagon P4
Ridgeway P2 The Parkway Flyover P5
Roman Way P5 The Viaduct P4
Royal Parade P4 Tor Lane P2
Saltash Road P5 Tothill Avenue P2
Saltash Road T/L P5 Tothill Avenue P6
Sandy Road P3 Tothill Road P2
Seagrave Road P5 Tothill Road P6

Page 44



Trelawny Place P5
Trevithick Road P5
Underlane P1
Union Street P4
Uxbridge Drive P6
Vauxhall Street P4
Victoria Road P5
Victoria Road P7
Wembury Road P1
Western Approach P4
Western Wood Road P3
Weston Mill Road P5
Whitsoncross Lane P6
William Prance Road P7
Wilton Road P4
Wilton Street P4
Wolseley Road P4
Wolseley Road P5
Wolseley Road P7
Wolverwood Lane P2
Woolwell R/B P3
Yeomans Way P2

Page 45



�
�����������	
����	���

�
�
�

��
���� 	����������������������������������� ��
�

��!�� ���������� �� � ��� �" ��#"���� ����� ��� ��$��� %�$�&�� ����� ���
%$���'�" �� �� � �!��
�
��� ��� (�)�� ����� �� � �!��
�
��� ���
�� ������ �� � �!��
�
��� ���� ���
��� ��� �� ������ ����� ��!��
�(�	
�(������)�$��*�)����������������� ��
�

��
���� �" ��#"������������+�$�'����'#�,'-�����
�

��!�� �" ��#"���� ����� ��� ���.-� �$��.� �� � �!��
�
��� ��� +�)"���-�
����� ��� ,�� ���).� %�$�&�� ��� �-�� �$�&���)� ��� ,���)� ����� �� �
�!��
�
��� ��� ,���)� ����� ��� ���&�&�� �� � �!��
�
��� ��� �����
����� ��� ($��'��.�� ��$��� �
��� ��/�� ��� ($��'��.�� ��$��� ��� �-��
�$�&���)��� ��!��
�
����������
������($��'��.����$��� ��������
����� �-���&-� ����� '���$�&���)� .�'�$��� ��� ,������ ����� �� �
�!��
�
��� ���
��� ��� ����� '���$�&���)� ���� ��!�� ��-��� .$���

��
������������������'���$�&���)��
�

��
���� ���
������,������������� ��
�

��!�� �������������,�����).�%�$�&���
�

��
���� ,�����).�%�$�&�����+�)"���-���������.�����������������$�&���)��
�

��!�� +�)"���-������ ������.-��$��.��� � ����" ��#"��������� �����)�$��
*�)�%�
���!�(�����(���.������'�� �����$���%�$�&����������$&-�.�
�
���
�!�(�� ��� ��..� +�$�'�� ��'#� ,'-���� ��� �" ��#"���� ����� ���
����������
�� ��
�

��
���� ���
����	���+	��
�

Page 46



�
�

�����������	
����	�0�
�
�
�

��
���� 	������������������������-����.����..��� �
�

��!�� �-���$���'�������)���+���������
�$���,���������,����-��.��%�$�&��
��� ��" ������� ����� ��� +��#� 
������ ��� /���)� ����� �
��� ��/��
�!��
�
������/���)�������'���������
������+��#�
�������
���
��/�����
� ����������������������
� ������������1�)-�"���������
,����.-���������*��.���)�������
�����/�����,��%�����2�,3��������
�$'���$�����������$'���$���������%��!��
�
����������
������,��
%�����2�,3��������*��.���)�����������"��.�(�����
�����/�����
,�� %�����2� %)4+�..� ��� �� � �!��
�
��� ���� ���
��� ��� ��"��.�
(���� �
��� ��/�� ���*��.���)� ����� ��� �$��-��.�� �����$'� �$&-�.� ���
�$�) �.� ������ �!��
�
��� ��+	�� ���
��� ��� �$��-��.�� �����$'�
�$&-�.�������"��.�(���������$'��$&-�.����,����.-�������
�

��
���� ,����.-���������,������������5��
�����/���
�

��!�� ,����������������*��.���)�������� ��!��
�
����������
������
,����������������%���-���"���������
�����/������$��-��.�������
�
��� �!�(�� ��� �-�� �����$'� �$&-�.� �-���&-� ��� ���������� ����� ���

� ����������
����!�(�����+��#�
�������
�����/���
�

��
���� +��#�
���������/����,�������
�

��!�� /���� .������ ��� +����$.�� ����� ��� 1$�&.� ����� �
��� �!�(�� ���
,����-��.�� %�$�&�� �
��� ��/�� ��� 
�$��� ,������ ��� *�.�����

�����'-��
�����/���������-����..��� ��!��
�
������
������
*�.�����
�����'-����
�$���,�������
�����/�������)���+���������
�-���$���'���
�

��
���� ���
����	���+	��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 47



�
�����������	
����	�6�

�
�

��
���� 	��������������������������.-��$��.��� �
�

��!�� ���.-� �$��.� �� � ��� ,�$�� ����� ����"���� �� � �!��
�
��� �� � ���
/�����������)��������������-$���������������)�*�)��
�����/�����
���$.��'#�������
�����/�����%��.-������������%��.-����*�)����
�����-$��� ����� �
��� ��/�� ��� +��"��� ����� �
��� ��/�� ���
���$.��'#������������.-����������
�����/����������-$���.-��.����
�����-$��� ����� �
��� ��/�� �����-$��� ����� ��� �$'���$�� ����� �� �
�!��
�
��� ���� ���
��� ��� /������ �����)� ��� ������..$.#� �����
�
��� ��/�� ���*�$&��).� �� � �
��� ��/�� ��� +�)" �$�&�� ����� ���
���$.��'#� ����� �
��� ��/�� ��� ,���-��)� ��$��� �
��� �!�(�� ���
��"������ /��$��� ����� �
��� �!�(�� ��� ,���-��)� ��$��� 7�����
'���$�&���)8����
���������$.��'#�������
�����/�����+�)" �$�&��
��������������..$.#���������/�����������)��������"������ �
�

��
���� ���
����	���+	��
�
�

�
�����������	
����	�9�

�
�
�

��
���� 	����������������������������������� �
�

��!�� ���������� ��%� ��� �2����� ,������ ��� �-����.� ���..� �� � ��� ���#��
�$�'�.��� ����+���)'�"3�$'#��� ����
�"�����������$��-��.�������$'�
�$&-�.��
����!�(�����	�������������-���&-�������$.��'#���������
�-��  ������)� ��� �� ����&-� �� � �!��
�
��� ���� ���
��� ���
���$.��'#����������$��-��.�������$'��$&-�.��
�����/�����
�"�������
�������
����	
������������������ ��
�����/������$�.��������
��������)�+��$��()���+��#�(������!��
�
�����������"���������
����-���������($����� ��!��
�
����������
�����������)�+��$�����
����-� ($��� �����$'� �$&-�.� �
��� �!�(�� ��� ����-� ($��� ���� ��� ���#��
�$�'�.��� ��!��
�
����������
�����������)�+��$�����
��2������
��������	�����$������������" ��#"����������
�

��
���� ���
����	���+	��
�
�

Page 48



�
��

��
��
��

�	
�


��
�
��


�



��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
�


�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��

�

��
�

 �
��

��
�!

�

�
��

��
��



��

��
��

��

�

�
��

��
"�

 #
��

�$
�!

�
%
��

��
��

��
��

&
��

"�
'
��

��
��

 (



!�

)
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

� 
#$
�!

�
)

��
��
��

��
(



� 
#$
�!

�

�
��
��
��
��
�
	

��
��
��
��


	�
�

��
���

	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�
	

	�
 �
�	
!�"

		
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

#�
��
��
�

��
��
�

#�
��
��
�

�
	�

�
��

	�
��
��
	

	�
 �

��
	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

#�
#�
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
�	
���

��$
��
	�
��
���

��
��
��

#�
��
��
��

##
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�
	

�%

��
���

	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

(
�)
	�
��
	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

(
	

��
���

	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
�#
��
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

*
�	
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

#�
#�
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
#�
�#
�

�
	

��
�

	�

�

��
���

	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�

"
�$
�
	�
��
��
��$
��
	�
��
���

��
��

#�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�



	�

�

��
���

	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
##
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
	

��
��
�

#�
��
�

#�
��
��
�



	�
��
�*
�	
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
#�
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
#�
��
�



%
��
�	
��
�
	

	�
 �
��
	�
��
���

��
��
��

&�
'
�

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�

&�
'
�

&�
'
�

+
	

,�
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
#�
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
�#
�

��
��
��
�

-
���
��
�
�
��
	�
��
$�
�
	�
��
���

��
��
��
�

#�
��
#�
��
��

#�
��
#�
��

��
�

��
��
�

��
��
�

��
�#
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject:    Contract Award for Single Homeless Hostel Support Service   

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    18 October 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Fry  

CMT Member: Director for Development and Regeneration 

Author: Nicola Rowley Adult Social Care Commissioning Officer 

Contact:    Tel:  01752 307069 
    e-mail: nicola.rowley@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:     

Key Decision: Yes  
 
Part: I    
 
Executive Summary:  
 
Plymouth City Council was successful for its bid for capital money to develop a modern  
purpose built 46 bed homeless hostel. The new hostel opened in August 2011. 
  
Prior to this Plymouth had two hostels meeting the needs of single homeless people in the city: the 
Ship, a 28 bed hostel run and managed by Plymouth City Council (PCC), and the Gates: a 10 bed 
night shelter run and managed by The Shekinah Mission. 
 
The creation of a new purpose built hostel resulted in the amalgamation of two services and provided 
an opportunity to review the current provision.   
 
A Business case agreed in February 2011 reviewed hostel services in the City and made the following 
recommendations:  

• PCC relinquish management of the Ship service once a new service to replace it has been 
commissioned.     

• Through competitive procurement commission one service (combining the services provided 
by PCC and Shekinah) to deliver support to the new single homeless hostel from an external 
organisation.  

• Include the homeless outreach service currently provided by Plymouth Access To Housing 
(PATH) to work with people sleeping rough within the service procurement. 

• The two existing services (The Ship and the Gates) to deliver within the new hostel until 
such time as a new service is procured. Contracts for the existing services will be extended 
to align to the newly procured service start date to ensure continuity of provision. 

 
The recommended competitive procurement of services to replace the current hostel services will 
ensure: 

• Creation of a new specification for the provision of a service which will ensure the new hostel 
service meets the requirements of the authority and partner agencies. 

• Competitive procurement, achieving financial efficiencies. 

• Improved outcomes for service users with a joined up provision giving a more holistic 
approach. 

Agenda Item 8Page 51



• Reduction in the financial risk to the authority in terms of potential loss of rent.  

• The service will be run by specialist providers, meeting identified emerging need and improve 
joint working with specialist agencies. 

• An opportunity to include homeless outreach services within the specification ensuring better 
value for money and therefore reducing costs to the Authority. 

• Current staff of PCC will pass to the new provider as part of the contract process under 
TUPE regulations. 

 
A competitive procurement was therefore conducted.  
 
For reasons of commercial confidentiality, the full details of the proposed contract are included 
within a separate part 2 report. 
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:  
  
The award and execution of these contracts specifically relates to the following Corporate 
Priorities:  
 
Raise aspiration: raise the skills and expectations of Plymouth residents.  

Reduce inequalities: reduce the large economic and health gaps between different areas 
of the city by tackling the causes. 

Provide value for communities: become more efficient and join up with partners and 
local residents to deliver services in new and better ways. 

Deliver Growth: Tackling worklessness by increasing access to training and employment for 
homeless vulnerable people and increase the number returning to paid employment. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The award of this contract is estimated to realise financial efficiencies for Plymouth City Council 
(Community Services and Development and Regeneration).  
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The service directly impacts upon the following local Strategies: 
 
Plymouth’s Homelessness Strategy 2008 – 2011: This project supports the targets and outcomes 
identified in the homelessness strategy, including the city’s move on plan. 
 
Plymouth’s Sustainable Community Strategy 2007 – 2020: This project supports the strategic 
objective of promoting inclusive community and improving health and well being.  
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
The recommendation is that a three year contract, with an option for three year extension be 
awarded to the preferred provider. 
 
The evaluation process determined their offer to be the most economically advantageous tender 
based on price and quality. The award of this contract is forecasted to achieve efficiencies. 

Page 52



Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Extend Existing Contracts: 
  
The contracts for the Ship and the Gates services expire 29th February 2012.  If these were extended, 
it would not be possible to achieve the efficiencies and quality requriements necessary to deliver the 
commissiong strategy objectives. 
 
In addition, the procurement of these services is subject to Plymouth Council’s Contract Standing 
Orders which state that any procurement over the threshold value of £75,000 is to be competitively 
tendered.  
 
 
Background papers:   
 
Contract Award Report (Part 2)  
 
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin CoS

F 
AC1
112 
001 

Leg AT1
268 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

JK/SP
U/25
4/08
11 

Originating SMT Member: Stuart Palmer 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject:   Capital investment delivery for Marine Academy Plymouth and All 
    Saints Academy, Plymouth. 
 
Committee: Cabinet 
 
Date:    18 October 2011 
 
Cabinet Member:  Councillor Samantha Leaves 
 
CMT Member:  Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 
Author:   Gareth Simmons (Programme Director for Learning Environments) 
 
Contact:   Tel: 01752 307161, gareth.simmons@plymouth.gov.uk   
Ref:     
Key Decision:  Yes  
 
Part:    I    
 
Executive Summary:  
 

1. In the autumn of 2010 the Department for Education (DfE) requested Partnership for Schools 
(PfS) to undertake a review of capital allocations to academies. Following the review, capital 
allocations of £11.5m for All Saints Academy, Plymouth and £9.5m for Marine Academy, 
Plymouth were approved in May 2011.  

1.1. PfS have indicated that the funding allocated is reliant on the procurement being through the 
Academies Framework administered by Partnership for Schools, managed through the 
Council. This was reinforced through a meeting with the Director for Services for Children 
and Young People and the Director for Corporate Support on 21 May 2011.   

1.2. As the Academies are separate organisations to Plymouth City Council there is no financial 
advantage to the Council in acting as the procurement agents. The condition liability of the 
schools falls to the Academies and the government so there is no direct reduction of liability 
that this investment would bring.  However the wider benefit to the city that such an 
investment would bring to the Council is significant. The capital investment would improve 
the school environments and bring up to current legislation the building fabric.  

 
1.3. The City Council is a co- sponsor of these Academies which means that it retains an influence 

and a responsibility to support these organisations as partners in the important objective of 
serving some of the most disadvantaged communities in the city. The Council has been fully 
involved in making the case to Government that these schools need capital investment to 
resolve long standing condition issues and to modernise their environments. 

 
1.4. Both All Saints and Marine Academy have achieved substantial gains in attainment since 

becoming Academies but there remains much more to achieve. It is therefore recommended 
that the Council should support these projects by acting as the responsible body in the capital 
delivery and to therefore secure this investment for the city.          

Agenda Item 9Page 55



 2

2. Corporate Plan 2011 - 2014: 
This programme aligns with and supports the following Corporate Priorities: 
 
§ Deliver growth and promote Plymouth as a thriving growth centre by creating the conditions for 

investment in quality new homes, jobs and infrastructure. The Academy Investment will improve 
education infrastructure that supports the growth of the city by supplying good quality education 
provision that meets need, and makes the city an attractive place to live and work. This paper 
brings to Cabinet opportunities for substantial investment into the City. 

§ Raise aspiration and the skills and expectations of Plymouth residents to ensure our young people 
achieve better qualifications and find high quality jobs. The investment this paper describes will 
significantly improve 12.5% of the secondary school infrastructure in the city.  

§ Reduce inequalities by reducing the large economic and health gaps between different areas of the 
city by improving the educational offered in these parts of the City. The proposals in this paper 
are targeted at narrowing the gaps in inequality of education that exists in the city. 

§ Provide value for communities and to become more efficient and joined up with partners and 
local residents to deliver services in new and better ways. These proposals seek to support the 
Academies that our partner organisations brokered to achieve the maximum value for the 
communities they serve. 

          
3. Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The overall cost of the two building projects will be met from within the Capital Grant funding of 
£21M  
 
3.1. The sum of £300,000 can be top sliced from the allocations for the Council to use for 

procurement costs.  Based on an analysis of costs this top slice will not be sufficient to fund 
the full costs of managing a project. However, it is anticipated these costs can be managed 
within the available resources with the support of the Academy Sponsors, who share the view 
that reduced expenditure in this area would be a false economy. The other sponsors are of 
the view that any liability of procurement costs above the top slice should be met by their 
organisations as it would be them who would bear the long term liability for the condition of 
the schools. In this way it is not expected that the Council will have to bear any costs above 
the £300k top slice from the projects. 

 
3.2. In addition there would be the Council’s staff time or expenses in gaining internal approvals, 

letting and monitoring the building or technical advisors contracts. A detailed assessment of 
this has been carried out which indicates a total of 210 days would be required. This would be 
the Council’s contribution in support of the projects. 

 
3.3. Acting as procurement agent, the Council will take on all liability for project over-run either 

in terms of timing or costs, including any contractual disputes. Against this, there is no 
indicated incentive for the Council in relation of retaining any surplus funding should a project 
be delivered under budget. However PfS have devised a client biased contract that offers a 
good deal of comfort that much of the delay risk is transferred to the contractor. It is of key 
importance that the specification, procurement and contract management is undertaken with 
appropriate rigour to ensure this transfer of risk is secured. 

 
 

Page 56



 3

3.4. The VAT implications regarding the capital investment delivery will depend on the ownership 
of the grant and the land interest. Formal leases have been held pending confirmation of the 
nature of the capital investment programme and so the Academy currently occupies the site 
under a Tenancy at Will (TAW). This was put in place in September 2010 and may be subject 
to amendment to meet the needs of project delivery. The revised arrangements will continue 
until the refurbishment is completed.  The Council would contract with the D&B contractor 
to carry out the works and the refurbished site would then be transferred to the Academy 
Trust under a 125 year peppercorn lease.  The Council would then be making a non-business 
supply for VAT purposes and providing this is a ‘true peppercorn’ lease, i.e. there is no 
consideration, PCC should be able to recover the VAT it incurs on the design and build 
contract.  If the lease is not a ‘true peppercorn’ this would adversely affect the Council’s 
partial exemption position in terms of the Council’s ability to recover VAT on its expenditure. 
It is recommended, therefore, that the Council “Opt to Tax” the academy site to mitigate this 
risk and to protect its VAT recovery position. 

 
3.5. The procurement does not involve any TUPE transfer so there are no demands on HR 

resources, however there would be a necessity to call on limited advice from Procurement, 
Legal and Finance officers in obtaining and reviewing advice from external consultants. A full 
resource plan has been devised that demonstrates the work commitment of corporate 
support officers. 

 
    
4. Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management 
and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
4.1. Schools are a key facility in their local communities and support wider cohesion in the area. 

An equality impact assessment has not been completed as the investment in school buildings 
would be designed to current building regulations which are fully DDA compliant. In addition, 
these are community facilities which are open to all; therefore issues surrounding 
discrimination on the basis of age, faith, gender, race, or sexual orientation are not applicable. 

 
4.2. Capital investment into schools offers the opportunity for them to resolve many issues of 

health and safety and community safety that have become long standing in schools. The capital 
investment will resolve building condition issues that in the long term improve the building 
fabric that could lead to Health & Safety breaches. 

 
4.3. A fully compliant risk register has been developed for the project. 
 
  
5. Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

Recommendation 
1.  That cabinet approves the Council being the procurement agent for the delivery of the design 

and construction programmes at the Marine Academy, Plymouth and All Saints Academy, 
Plymouth in accordance with the schemes approved by Partnership for Schools  

 
6. Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
Careful consideration has been given to not acting as procurement agent and discussion has taken 
place with other authorities who have also been given this challenge by PfS, there are mixed views 
and other authorities have taken different courses of action.  The ministerial view given to both 
sponsors has been one that the use of the Council as procurement agent is mandatory which implies 
that the investment into Plymouth would be lost if the Council chose not to act in this capacity. 

Page 57



 4

 
7. Background papers:   
8. Investment for Children Cabinet Paper approved 11 November 2008 

9. Plymouth City Council Children’s Services Strategy for Change Investment for Children 

10. Building Schools for the Future (BSF) Project Governance and BSF Cabinet Committee 

11. Part II Memorandum of Agreement between sponsors and the Council (contains exempt 
information)) 

 
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin ChS

0 
356”
. 
 

Leg 
 

TH0
028 

HR NA Corp 
Prop 

CT 
21/09/
11 

IT NA Strat 
Proc 

JK/S
PU/
CP/2
58/0
911 

Originating SMT Member 
 

Page 58



 5

8. Background 
8.1. In June 2010 the Secretary of State stopped the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 

programme and Plymouth’s case for investment of the secondary schools was therefore 
denied. However, those schools that were sponsored academies and a part of the programme 
of capital renewal were not fully stopped but instead paused. The Department for Education 
(DFE) requested Partnership for Schools (PfS) to review the capital allocation to academies 
against a background of a reduction in available expenditure for academies from £1.4 billion to 
£800 million. In all, 75 academies across the country were subject to a site assessment against 
a condition based criteria devised by PfS. Seventy one academies were given allocations on 20 
December 2010. All Saints Academy, Plymouth (ASAP) and the Marine Academy Plymouth 
(MAP) were allocated £10.6 million and £8.6 million respectively. This means that the city was 
successful in arguing the case for some investment to those schools that were part of its 
original BSF proposals.   

 
8.2. The academy sponsors (of which Plymouth City Council are co-sponsors of both academies) 

appealed against their allocations and these were revised following submissions to Ministers. 
The current capital allocated were approved in May 2011 are: ASAP, £11.5 million and MAP 
£9.5 million. After some time all 71 academies nationally have been given the authority to 
proceed. 

 

9. PfS preferred procurement 
9.1. Ministers have signed off the allocations on the basis that the delivery of this capital 

investment is procured through the Academies Framework administered through PfS. In the 
discussions between PfS and sponsors of Marine Academy Plymouth and All Saints Academy 
Plymouth in May 2011, PfS have indicated that the funding allocated is reliant on the 
procurement being through this route and managed through the Council. This was reinforced 
through a meeting with the Director for Services for Children and Young People and the 
Director for Corporate Support on 21 May 2011.  

Reasons given by PfS for the Council delivering these projects are as follows: 
 
§ Both All Saints and Marine Academy, Plymouth are similar projects involving refurbishment of 

buildings which were built at the same time by the Council, there would be economy of scale of a 
single procurement. 

§ A single delivery project of £21 million will be more attractive to a framework contractor than 
single procurements of £9.5 million and £11.5 million leading to greater competition for the 
work. 

§ A single procurement lead by the Council could be added to if funding for a UTC was approved. 
§ Delivery by the Council removed the risk of overspend from Ministers to a Council level. 

Councils have a greater reputation in delivery on time and on budget than academy sponsors. 
 
9.2. It is therefore concluded that unless the Council agree to undertake this work the investment 

for these schools would be lost to the city. 

 

10. PfS framework 
10.1. The Academies Programme has delivered new and refurbished academies through a national 

framework for over five years. This is a framework of contractors with a standard suite of 
documents that can deliver primary, secondary and post 16 education facilities. A new 
Contractors Framework was launched in 2010 to allow for greater volume and scope and is 
now being used for Free Schools and UTCs as well as academies.  

Page 59



 6

10.2. Since July 2010 PfS have been working to improve its processes mirroring the department’s 
Sebastian James Review with the aim of further increasing efficiency and effectiveness of the 
framework. These new models have been tested at the Doncaster Campsmount School, 
cutting costs by 30 per cent and procurement times by 50 per cent. Other examples across 
the country are also delivering the reductions in procurement time using this slimmed down 
process. 

10.3. The preferred model of delivery is for a Local Authority to act as the procuring agent for the 
Academy Trust using its experience and skills to manage effectively the design and 
construction programme. The majority of the project risk is taken by the Design and Build 
contractor with only residual risks held by the Council. The sponsor leads the design 
development and jointly signs off the agreed project with the Council before the scheme is 
approved at central level and moves the contract award. The Council can top slice £150,000 
for a single project to cover the majority of its costs. Future schools projects can be top 
sliced by £75,000. For Plymouth it would, therefore, receive £225,000 upfront to enable its 
delivery of All Saints and Marine Academy Plymouth. Both academies have objected to a 
batched approach to procurement and PfS finally confirmed on the 13 July 2011that they 
would allow each academy to be a separate procurement, however still using the Council as 
agent. This means that it allows a total of £300k to be top sliced from the budget for delivery 
costs. 

 

11. Objective benefits 
11.1. As the Academies are separate organisations to Plymouth City Council there are no clear 

financial benefits to the Council in acting as the procurement agents. The condition liability of 
the schools falls to the Academies and the Government so there is no direct reduction of 
liability that this investment would bring.  However the wider benefit to the city that such an 
investment would bring to the Council is significant. The capital investment would improve 
the school environments and bring up to current legislation the building fabric. The clear 
advantages in meeting the Council’s objectives in raising aspiration and contributing to the 
growth of the city, by enabling significant capital investment into the education infrastructure 
is a clear benefit. 

 
11.2. In addition to the above the Council is the co- sponsors of these Academies which mean that 

it retains an influence and a responsibility to support these organisations as partners in the 
important object of serving some of the most disadvantaged communities in the city. The 
Council has been fully involved in making the case to Government that these schools need 
capital investment to resolve long standing condition issues and to modernise their 
environments. 

 
11.3. In 2009/10 the Council was fully committed to supporting these Academies in capital delivery 

through the BSF programme and the risks of procurement and delivery very clearly rested 
with the Council at this time, the Academies Act 2010 has changed the nature and reasons for 
schools becoming academies and changed the financial incentives. However the fundamental 
objectives and reasons the Council brokered sponsors for both ASAP and MAP remain 
unchanged. Both ASAP and MAP have achieved substantial gains in attainment since becoming 
Academies but there remains much more to achieve. It is difficult to argue that the Council 
should not continue to support these projects by acting as responsible body in the capital 
delivery.  

 
 
 
 

Page 60



 7

11.4. By delivering these projects there is considerable influence that the Council gains in the 
contracting market due to the large scale of such a delivery. This would assist considerably in 
the delivery of other infrastructure projects in the growth agenda. Soft market testing with 
the contractor base indicated that local construction market would prefer the Council to 
manage the procurement and see advantages in contracting with a Local Authority as opposed 
to the academy Sponsors. 

 
11.5. The relationship with sponsors and the future sponsors of a UTC is of consideration. The 

influence the Council retains through the delivery of these projects is of considerable benefit 
to the relationship between parties and organisations. This will contribute to the mutual 
support of the partner organisations that will build a stronger collaborative partnership that 
will benefit the long term development of the city. 

12. Financial position 
12.1. As the Academies are separate organisations to Plymouth City Council there is no financial 

advantage to the Council in acting as the procurement agents. The condition liability of the 
schools falls to the Academies and the Government so there is no direct reduction of liability 
that this investment would bring.  However the wider benefit to the city that such an 
investment would bring to the Council is significant. The capital investment would improve 
the school environments and bring up to current legislation the building fabric. There are 
clear advantages in meeting the Council’s objectives in raising aspiration and contributing to 
the growth of the city by enabling significant capital investment into the education 
infrastructure.   

 
12.2. The sum of £300,000 can be top sliced from the allocations for the Council to use for 

procurement costs.  The analysis below shows that this top slice will not be sufficient to fund 
the full costs of managing a project. However, it is anticipated these costs can be managed 
within the available resources with the support of the Academy Sponsors, who share the view 
that reduced expenditure in this area would be a false economy.  

 
12.3. The technical advice and project management required has been tendered through the Office 

of Government Commerce (OGC) and will be a fixed sum of £227,789. This gives some 
comfort that the total procurement costs will be about £350k. An assessment of the costs are 
as follows: 

 
• Project Management £30,083  (fixed price contract) 
• Technical Advisors £197,706 (fixed price contract) 
• Legal Consultant £16,100  
• ICT Consultant £21,600  
• Surveys £58,900  
• Contingency £25,611  

Total £350,000  
 
13. The Council has experience of delivering similar scale projects through its own construction 

frameworks with delivery costs well below £300k however the reducing capacity of corporate 
support functions, such as legal and finance, due to diminishing revenue budgets will provide a 
challenge when compared to resourcing other key project requirements such as the Energy to 
Waste plant, although it is acknowledged that some of the Council’s commitment to large 
investment projects are coming to an end and there is a need to retain staff with the skills in 
managing such infrastructure projects if the growth agenda is to be realised. 

 

Page 61



 8

13.1. The procurement does not involve any TUPE transfer so there are no demands on HR 
resources, however there would be call on limited advice from Procurement, Legal and 
Finance officers in obtaining and reviewing advice from external consultants. A full resource 
plan has been devised that demonstrates the work commitment of corporate support officers. 

 
13.2. Acting as procurement agent, the Council will take on all liability for project over-run either 

in terms of timing or costs, including any contractual disputes. Against this, there is no 
indicated incentive for the Council in relation of retaining any surplus funding should a project 
be delivered under budget. However PfS have devised a client biased contract that offers a 
good deal of comfort that much of the delay risk is transferred to the contractor. It is of key 
importance that the specification, procurement and contract management is undertaken with 
appropriate rigour to ensure this transfer of risk is secured. 

 
13.3. The VAT implications regarding the capital investment delivery will depend on the ownership 

of the grant and the land interest. Formal leases have been held pending confirmation of the 
nature of the capital investment programme and so the interest in the land remains with 
Council, since the Academy occupies the site under a tenancy at will. This was put in place in 
September 2010 and will continue until the refurbishment is completed.  The grant, therefore, 
belongs to the Council as the land owner.  The Council would contract with the Design and 
Build contractor to carry out the works and the refurbished site would then be transferred to 
the Academy Trust under a 125 year peppercorn lease.  The Council would then be making a 
non-business supply for VAT purposes and providing this is a ‘true peppercorn’ lease, ie there 
is no consideration, The Council should be able to recover the VAT it incurs on the design 
and build contract.  If the lease is not a ‘true peppercorn’ this would adversely affect the 
Council’s partial exemption position in terms of the Council’s ability to recover VAT on its 
expenditure. It is recommended, therefore, that the Council “Opt to Tax” the academy site 
to mitigate this risk and to protect its VAT recovery position. 

 
13.4. The ministerial view given to both sponsors has been one that the use of the Council as 

procurement agent is mandatory which implies that the investment into Plymouth would be 
lost if the Council chose not to act in this capacity. 

 

14. Legal position 
14.1. Whilst changes have been introduced by the Academies Act 2010, the Council does retain 

power to act as a procurement agent in the type of arrangements proposed.  
 
14.2. As the Academies are now separate organisations to the Council, there will be the need to 

transfer collateral and other warranties from the consultants, contractors and manufactures 
of the works. The Council would not hold a residual role following the completion of the 
works as the Academy will retain responsibility for the on going repair and maintenance of 
the property as set out the standard 125 year academy lease. 

 
14.3. In order to avoid any disputes between the parties there has been a Memorandum of 

Agreement (MOU) between the Academy Trusts, their sponsors and the Council, that sets 
out the expectations of each party. There is also standard Development agreement between 
the Council and the Academy Trust that is drafted by PfS that clearly sets out the transfer of 
the completed building works to the Academy Trust. 

 
14.4. Partnership for Schools have also set out a standard MOU between the Council and them 

selves that formally sets out the agreement that the Council will follow PfS processes and use 
all of their standard documents. 

Page 62



 9

 

15. Governance 
15.1. The contractual liability rests with the Council as the direct contracting party, therefore the 

control of the contract and its procurement through the government’s Academy Framework 
also rests with the Council. In this respect the project is like any other that the Council is 
delivering and its governance will be arranged in the same way as other projects including 
being governed by the Council’s decision making structures, standing orders and financial 
regulations. 

 
15.2. However it is recognised that, what is delivered and indeed the long term value from the 

investment, are the interests of the academy trusts. For this reason the academy trusts and 
the Sponsors are very insistent that they have a high degree of transparency to the 
procurement and to the technical advisors who will be offering advice on the value of the 
contractor’s proposals. 

 
15.3. Both academy trusts have set out how their organisations and their own governance 

structures will engage with the Council. Both academy trusts have appointed experienced 
people to represent their organisations one from the academy trust and one from the 
sponsoring organisation and these will be closely involved in the project. 

 

16. Risks and benefits 
16.1. For the sake of absolute clarity the following are the risks and benefits of undertaking the role 

as procurement agent for these projects: 
 
§ The procurement top slice may not be sufficient to meet the cost of the procurement, especially 

if it is delayed in some way.  This risk is mitigated by an agreement with both sponsors. 
§ The building contracts will contain some risk of compensation events, this risk is mitigated by the 

use of PfS client biased contracts that mean that the scope of the works is at greater risk than 
project cost over run. This risk is also mitigated by robust governance in place that controls the 
expenditure and risk management throughout the project delivery. 

§ There is a risk that the relationships with the partners and the Academies are strained by the 
challenges of getting a project that delivers within the constraints of the funding envelope.. This 
risk is mitigated by the arrangement that has been reached with sponsors that they should 
provide professional support with experience of technical and procurement matters as 
representatives to the project board. 

§ There is also the reputational risk if the Council choose not to undertake the role as 
procurement agent, in this circumstance it is possible that the funding might be lost and also 
future funding could be in jeopardy if the Council are not able to support delivery. 
 
Considering the benefits the following will be achieved if these projects are supported: 
 

§ There would be a £21m investment into two of the cities schools that would address a 
considerable back log of condition issues and offer them the opportunity to remove old and 
unwanted buildings on the sites. 

§ It offers the opportunity for the city to raise aspirations in parts of the city that need inward 
investment to value children’s opportunities that will ensure that the work force of the future are 
able to make better contributions to Plymouth’s economy. 

§ It offers the opportunity to place the Council in a position of influence in the construction 
marketplace to drive out the benefit of jobs in the construction industry to Plymouth’s economy.  

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11Page 65
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12Page 73
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 SCRUTINY PANEL TASK AND FINISH GROUP FOR WINTER MAINTENANCE
	Winter_Maintenance Preparation (Gritting) Growth and Prosperity task and finish group scrutiny report

	8 CONTRACT AWARD FOR SINGLE HOMELESS HOSTEL SUPPORT SERVICE
	9 CAPITAL INVESTMENT DELIVERY FOR MARINE ACADEMY PLYMOUTH AND ALL SAINTS ACADEMY PLYMOUTH
	11 CONTRACT AWARD FOR SINGLE HOMELESS HOSTEL SUPPORT SERVICE (E3)
	12 MOUNT EDGCUMBE INVEST TO SAVE OPTIONS (E3)

